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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Mayor and City Commissioners
City of Junction City, Kansas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Junction City, Kansas (the City) as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2012, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated August 8, 2013. Our report
contained a disclaimer of opinion on the aggregate discretely presented component unit opinion because the
aggregate discretely presented component units were not audited.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in iniernal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certain
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as Finding 2012-1 to be material weaknesses.

‘Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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City's Response to Findings

The City’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. The City’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any

other ;')urpose. | | . N

August 8, 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Mayor and City Commissioners
City of Junction City, Kansas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the compliance of City of Junction City, KS (the City) with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of
the City's major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2012. The City's major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

Management’'s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City's major federal programs based on our
audit of the fypes of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.” Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended
December 31, 2012.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have
a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not aliow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance,

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in the internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. -
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

' ¢ P

August 8, 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Mayor and City Commissioners
City of Junction City, Kansas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Junction City, Kansas, as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2012, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Audifing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States and the “Kansas Municipal Accounting and Audit Guide.” These standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The financial statements of the Junction City Public Library (the Library) have not been audited, and we were not
engaged to audit the Library’s financial statements as part of our audit of the City’s basic financial statements. The
Library’s financial activities are included in the City's basic financial statements as a discretely presented component
unit and represent 7 percent, 11 percent and 32 percent of the assets, net position, and revenues, respectively, of
the City’s aggregate discretely presented component units. The financial statements of the Spirit of '76 (Spirit) have
not been audited, and we were not engaged to audit Spirit's financial statements as part of our audit of the City's
basic financial statements. Spirit's financial activities are included in the City's basic financial statements as a
discretely presented component unit and represent 93 percent, 89 percent and 68 percent of the assets, net
position, and revenues, respectively, of the City's aggregate discretely presented component units,
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Qualified Opinion

Because the Library’s and Spirit's financial statements have not been audited, the scope of our work was not
sufficient to enable us to express, and we do not express, an opinion on the financial statements of the aggregate
discretely presented component units of the City of Junction City, Kansas as of and for the year ended December
31, 2012.

Unmodified Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information for the City of Junction City, Kansas, as of December 31, 2012, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary
comparisons for the general fund and capital improvement fund for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion
and analysis on pages 3 through 9 and the schedule of funding progress on page 46 be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information ,

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City's financial statements as a whole. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
schedules, and statistical tables as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules and the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying account and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a
whole. The statistical section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingiy, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with “Government Auditing Standards,” we have also issued our report dated August 8, 2013, on our
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

' ( Conpay PA

August 8, 2013



CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2012

As management of the City of Junction City, we offer readers of the City's financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012. We
encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the City's financial statements
which begin on page 1.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of 2012 by $64,846,380 (net assets).
The City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $10,164,540.

The fund balance for the general fund increased by $807,093.

The City's total general obligation debt decreased in 2012 by $3.5 million.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The
City's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City's
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the most recent
fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some
items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused
vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions for the City that are principally supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities
of the City include general government, public safety, public works, parks and recreation, and economic
development. The business-type activities of the City include water and sewer, stormwater, Spin City Skating,
Sanitation and Rolling Meadows Golf Course. However, Rolling Meadows Golf Course operational budget has been
absorbed into the General Fund in 2012 under Parks and Recreation oversight. We have budgeted for the same to
occur with the Spin City fund by absorbing it into the General Fund in 2014.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping or related accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure
and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into
two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.



CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2012

Governmenial funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental
fund financial statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a
government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of the governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet
and governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation
to facilitate this comparison between the governmental funds and governmental acfivities.

Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, capital improvement fund, capital
projects fund and debt service fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its funds. A budgetary companson statement has been provided
for the various governmental funds that are required to have a budget. This is to demonstrate compllance with the
annually adopted budget.

Proprietary funds

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer operatuon stormwater
operation, skating rink, sanitation, and the golf course.

Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the government wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the water
and sewer fund, and the stormwater fund.

Notes 1o the basic financial statements.

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information concerning the City's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its

employees.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are presented
immediately following the required supplementary information.



CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2012

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the
case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $64,846,380 at the close of 2012. The City's net assets increased by
$7,039,010. The governmental activities increased by $5,145,997. The business type activities increased by

$1,893,013.

Gowernment-Wide Financial Statements

City of Junction City

Gowernmental Activities

Business-type Activities

2011 2012 2011 2012

Current and other assets 3 68,058,938 $ 69,729,791 $ 4,848,264 $ 6,969,332
Capital assets 86,706,798 84,561,446 68,969,453 67,829,974
Other noncurrent assets 2,294,610 2,049,426 258,988 234,896
Total assets $ 157,060,346 $ 156,340,663 $ 74,076,705 $ 75,034,202
Long term liabilities $ 135414485 $ 130,225,677 $ 16,890,635 $ 15,598,637
Other liabilities 17,915,425 9,794,394 3,123,717 2,685,502
Deferred inflows of resources - 8,224,275 - -
Total liabilities and deferred inflows $ 153,329,910 $ 148,244,346 $ 20,014,352 $ 18,284,139
Net assets:

Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt $ [54,665,937] $ [51,875,398] $ 50,146,497 $ 50,626,121
Restricted 49,923,874 49,023,152 - -
Unrestricted 8,472,499 10,048,563 3,915,856 6,123,942
Total net assets $ 3,730,436 $ 8,096,317 $ 54,062,353 3 56,750,063

By far the largest portion of the City's net assets reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
infrastructure, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these are not available
for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.



CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2012

A portion of the City's net assets, $49,923,152, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how
they may be used.
City of Junction City
Changes in Net Assets

Gowernmental Activities Business-type Activities
2011 2012 2011 2012
Rewenues:
Program revenues
Charges for senices $ 3,032,305 $ 3,693,576 $11,342,059 $12,133,269
Operating grants and contributions 1,626,703 1,634,111 - -
Capital grants and contributions 6,432,843 2,518,706 - -
General revenues
Property taxes 9,027,993 9,937,633 - -
Sales tax 10,578,965 10,915,013 - -
Franchise taxes 1,769,991 1,833,692 - -
Other : 1,695,678 2,871,551 296,566 408,889
Total revenue 34,164,478 33,404,282 11,638,625 12,542,158
Expenses:
General government , 3,216,686 2,972,338 - -
Public safety 8,094,613 7,466,537 - -
Public works 4,756,348 6,220,145 - -
Culture and recreation 1,030,077 1,414,550 - -
Economic dewvelopment 735,683 975,615 - -
Public health and sanitation 1,803,687 2,034,862 - -
Interest on long-term debt 6,698,600 6,771,428 - -
Payments on other obilgations 1,516,382 1,855,634 - -
Water and sewer - - 7,356,961 7,207,927
Stormwater ‘ - - 408,349 462,200
Spin City skating - - 179,082 257,592
Golf - - 332,836 -
Sanitation - - 1,440,358 1,268,602
Total expenses 27,852,056 29,711,109 . 9,717,566 9,196,321
Change in net assets before
transfers ‘ 6,312,422 3,693,173 1,921,059 3,345,837
Transfers 389,185 1,452,824 [389,185]  [1,452,824]
Change in net assets 6,701,607 5,145,997 1,631,874 1,893,013
Net assets, beginning of year
as previously stated [2,970,752] 3,730,436 52,530,479 54,062,353
Prior period adjustment [419] [780,118] - 794,697
Net assets, beginning of year '
restated [2,971,171] 2,950,320 52,530,479 . 54,857,050
Net assets, end of year $ 3,730,436 $ 8,096,317 $54,062,353 $56,750,063

6



CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2012

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds -

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance- related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In particular,
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at
the end of the fiscal year.

The general fund is the main operating fund of the City. At the end of 2012, unassigned fund balance of the general
fund was $4,808,908.

Proprietary funds

The City's proprietary funds financial statements provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail. The change in net assets for the proprietary funds includes both the current
year activity and restatement of prior year fund balance.

Unrestricted net assets of the Water and Sewer Fund at the end of 2012 amounted to $5,010,920, the Storm Water
Fund's unrestricted net assets were $865,542 and the non major proprietary fund's were $247,480. The non major
proprietary funds are the Golf Fund, Spin City, and Sanitation. The total change in net assets in 2012 for the water
and sewer fund was an increase of $1,879,123 and a decrease of $[162,921] for stormwater fund while the non
major proprietary funds change in net asset was in increase $176,811.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City continues to be impacted by the growth of the community due to expansion at the adjacent military
installation. Fort Riley, home of the First Division reached *full nest” in 2012, which continues to impact issues with
quality, affordable housing for soldiers and their families.

The City’s revenues have remained stable for the last two years. Sales tax revenue in 2012 was $ 5,950,705.61
A revenue source that was increased is franchise fees.

Residential construction continues in the community. The City continues to see a steady number of building permits

issued. The permits are for single family and multi-family dwelling units. Building permits issued in 2012 were
1022, representing 301 new housing units. The previous number of permits issued for 2010 were 1042,

representing 213 new housing units and in 2009 the City issued 628 permits that represent 187 new housing units.



CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2012

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of December 31, 2012,
amounts to $152,391,420 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes construction
in progress, land, buildings, streets, water and sewer lines, storm sewers, equipment and improvements. See
detailed capital asset information in note 5 of the notes to these financial statements.

City of Junction City
Capital Assets

Gowvernmental Activities Business-type Activities
2011 2012 2011 2012

Construction in Progress $ - $ - $ 371,810 §$ -
Land 13,732,739 13,732,739 610,446 610,446
Buildings 19,004,609 19,150,528 26,613,364 26,517,783
Streets 05,905,599 96,209,949 74,791,178 75,283,752
Equipment and improvements 7,742,437 9,531,884 9,169,403 9,085,444
Less: Accumulated Depreciation [49,678,586] [54,063,654] [42,586,748) [43,667,451]
Total capital assets, net - $86,706,798 $84,561,446 $68,969,453 $67,829,974

At the end of 2012, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $127,677,740 backed by full faith and credit of the
city, no temporary notes, and $20,447,239 of State of Kansas Revolving Loan fund debt. $6,785,481 of that State
revolving fund debt represents bonds secured solely by water and sewer revenue sources. In 2010 and 2011 the
City experienced a cash flow crisis which had to be addressed to make the second half bond payments in 2012,
The crisis was averted by the implementation of several immediate cutbacks as well as significant increases in
revenues. Ultimately, a Fiscal Transformation Plan was developed to ensure complete recovery. Some of the
actions taken to respond and recover included the following:

PN~

No

10.
11.

Debt restructuring to improve cash flow position.

Increase in property taxes

Requested and received by a vote of the citizens, a one cent sales tax restricted for debt payments.

Worked with Standards & Poors to retain an A bond rating and was successful in increasing it to an A+ in
2013.

Multiple community meetings and forums to engage public in discussions of organizational structure,
prioritization of services, and education.

Kept open communications with Fort Riley, which is the cities’ largest employer.

Worked with legislative delegations to extend debt limit revisions for Junction City and was successful in
2012 legislature. We also requested assistance from congressional delegates to lessen the local burden
created by Fort Riley, which resulted in federal highway funds for US77 improvements (multiple projects)
without city mating funds and a FEMA grant award for a new fire ladder truck for $760,000.

A complete review of all contract services was done to ensure contracts were viable and actions were taken
to revise or cancel if contracts were found insufficient. This has led to cancellation of contract for services
for operating public works through a private contractor. Contract errors that were found have been
corrected.

A complete city staff organization plan was analyzed and changes made to develop efficiencies and
eliminated services no longer in demand or deemed a high priority.

Administration and franchise fees were established for all utility funds.

The policy on Special Assessment practices was changed to ensure that a project developer is responsible
for the cost of development.



CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2012

12. Economic development debt was halted and policy changes to be changed for future projects. Spirit of '76
transactions were reorganized and controls put in place to reduce city liability.

13. All organizational expenditures were analyzed and limited to operational priorities. All capital projects were
deferred.

14, The City accounting and fund management practices revised. A new Fiscal Policy was adopted and
multiple checks and balances implemented. The City hired a new audit firm and continues to work with
auditors to improve accounting system to meet GAAP and GASB standards.

15. All schedules debt payments were made in 2012 and the Cities’ year end cash balance was $13,834,751.

More detailed information about the City’s long-term debt is presented in Note 10 to the basic financial statements.

City of Junction City
Outstanding Debt v
General Obligation, Revenue and State of Kansas Rewolving Loans

Gowernmental Activities Business-type Activities

2011 2012 2011 2012
General obligation bonds $ 61,530,383 $ 59,026,031 $ 10,710,786 $ 9,763,821
Special assessment debt 60,970,581 58,529,603 - -
State of KS Rewolving Loans 14,497,537 13,661,758 7,944,826 6,785,481
Certificate of Participation 3,625,000 3,285,000 - -
Notes Payable - 567,814 - -
Capital Lease Obligations 749,234 1,366,638 167,344 654,551
Total $ 141,372,735 $ 136,436,844 $ 18,822,956 $ 17,203,853

The City's total debt decreased by a net amount of $6,554,994 during 2012. The State of Kansas statutes limit the
amount of general obligation debt a government entity may issue up to 30 percent of its total assessed valuation.
However, the City of Junction City sought and received a waiver to enable a debt limit up to 40 percent. Certain
types of debt do not count in the State of Kansas calculation. Exemptions exist for water and sewer infrastructure
projects. The City of Junction City reached its debt limit in 2012.

Requests for information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all those with an interest in

the City's finances. Questions concerning any information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to the City Clerk's Office, 700 N. Jefferson, Junction City, Kansas.



CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2012

Primary Government Component Units

Total Total Total Pubiic
Governmental Business-type Primary Library Spirit of '76
Activities Activities Government (unaudited) (unaudited)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 7,729,494 6,105,257 $ 13,834751 $ 1,037,125 § 3,397
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Accounts 892,497 1,392,324 2,284,821 - 1,443,971
Taxes 10,211,052 - 10,211,052 - -
Special assessments 50,338,056 - 50,338,056 - -
Notes 26,999 - 26,999 - -
internal balances 528,249 [528,249] - - -
inventory 3,444 - 3,444 - -
Property investment held for sale - - - - 11,931,826
Deferred charges 2,049,426 234,896 2,284,322 - -
Total current assets 71,778,217 7,204,228 78,983,445 1,037,125 13,379,194
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, nondepreciable
Land 13,732,739 610,446 14,343,185 - -
Capital assets, depreciable 124,892,361 110,886,979 235,779,340 - -
Less: Accumulated depreciation [54,063,654] [43,667.451] [97,731,105] - -
Total noncurrent assets 84,561,446 67,828,974 152,391,420 - -
Total assets $ 156,340,663 75,034,202 $231,374865 $§ 1,037,125 $ 13,379,194
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Liabilities
Current liabilities: :
Accounts payable $ 757,541 398,482 § 1,156,023 § 1,285 . $ -
Accrued payroll 245,378 20,833 266,211 - -
Interest payable 1,834,551 195,972 2,130,523 - -
Meter deposits payable - 448,934 448,934 - -
Current portion of compensated absences payable - 16,085 16,085 - -
Current portion of loans payable 871,611 468,925 1,340,536 - -
Current portion of notes payable 80,607 - 80,607 - -
Current portion of general obligation bonds payable 2,620,004 995,000 3,615,004 - -
Current portion of special assessments bonds payabie 2,495,317 - 2,485,317 - -
Current portion of certificate of participation 350,000 - 350,000 - -
Current portion of capital lease payable 439,385 141,291 580,676 - -
Total current liabilities 9,794,394 2,685,502 12,479,896 1,285 -
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences payable 491,407 - 491,407 - -
Net OPEB Obligation 154,350 - 154,350 - -
. Loans payable 12,790,147 6,316,556 19,106,703 - 4,658,745
Notes payable 487,207 - 487,207 - -
General obligation bonds payable 56,406,027 8,768,821 65,174,848 - -
Special assessments bonds payable 56,034,286 - 56,034,286 - -
Certificates of participation payable 2,935,000 - 2,935,000 - -
Capital lease payable 927,253 513,260 1,440,513 - -
Total non-current liabilities 130,225,677 15,598,637 145,824,314 - 4,658,745
Total liabilities 140,020,071 18,284,139 158,304,210 1,285 4,658,745
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 8,224,275 - 8,224,275 - -
Total deferred inflows of resources 8,224,275 - 8,224,275 - -
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources $ 148,244,346 18,284,139 $166,528485 § 1,285 § 4,658,745
Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ {51,875,398] 50,626,121 $ [1,249277] $ - § -
Restricted for:
Capital projects 640,090 - 640,090 - -
Revolving funds 737,731 - 737,731 - -
Equipment 141,826 - 141,826 - -
Debt service 48,403,505 - 48,403,505 - -
Unrestricted 10,048,563 6,123,942 16,172,505 1,035,840 8,720,449
Total net position $ 8,096,317 56,750,063 § 64,846,380 $ 1,035,840 $ 8,720449

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental activities:
General govermment
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Economic development
Public health and sanitation

Payments on other obligations (see note)

Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental acfivities
Business-type activities:

Water and Sewer

Stormwater

Spin City

Sanitation
Total business-type activities
Total primary government
Component units:

Public Library

Spirit of '76 ,

Total component units

CIT‘{ OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Net [Expenses] Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Program Revenues Primary Government C Units
Operating Capital Total Total Public
Charges for Grantsand  Grants and Gover | Busi -typ! Library Spirit of '76
Expenses Services _ Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total (Unaudited) _(Unaudiied)
§ 2,972,338 § 945318 § 637,548 § - 8 [1,389,472] § - 8§ [1,389,472] S - § -
7,466,537 2,413,094 382,883 - 4,670,560] - [4,670,560] - -
6,220,145 335,164 613,680 2,518,706 {2,752,595] - [2,752,595] - -
1,414,550 - - - {1,414,550) - [1,414,850] - -
975,615 - - - {975,615) - [975,615]) - -
2,034,862 - - - [2,034,862] - [2,034,862) - -
1,855,634 - - - [1,855,634] - [1,855,634] - -
6,771,428 - - - 6.771,428] - 6,771.428] - -
29,711,108 3,693,576 1,634,111 2,518,706 (21,864,716} - [21,864,716) - -
7,207,927 9,747,283 - - - 2,539,356 2,539,356 - -
462,200 781,779 - - - 319,579 319,579 - -
257,592 143,203 - - - [114,389] [114,389] - -
1,268,602 1,461,004 - - - 192.402 192,402 - -
9.196.321 _12.133,269 - - - 2,936,948 2,936,948 - -
$38,907.430 $15826,845 § 1634111 $ 2518706 _ [21,864,716) 2,936,948 [18,927.768] - -
$ 876170 § - $1031,152 $ - - - - 154,982 -
286,976 460,494 - 1,725,144 - - - - 1,888,662
$ 1,173.146 § 460494 S 1,031,152 $ 1,725,144 - - - 154,982 1,888,662
General Revenues:
Property tax 9,937,633 - 9,937,633 - -
Sales tax 10,915,013 - 10,915,013 - -
Franchise tax 1,833,692 - 1,833,692 - -
Payments in lieu of tax 16,406 - 16,406 - -
Use of money or property 586,731 - 586,731 - 8
Miscellaneous 2,268,414 408,889 2,677,303 - -
Transfers, net 1,452,824 1,452,824 - - -
Subtotal general revenues 27,010,713 1,043.935) 25,966,778 - 8
Change in net position 5,145,997 1,893,013 7.039.010 154,882 1,888,670
Net position - beginning 3,730,436 54,062,353 57,792,789 880,858 6,831,779
Prior period adjustment [780,116] 794,697 14,581 - -
Net position -~ beginning, restated 2,850,320 54,857,050 57,807,370 880,858 6,831,779

Net pasition - ending

$ 8,096,317 § 56,750,063 § 64,846,380 § 1,035840 $8,720.449

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS

Cash and investments

Receivables (net)
Accounts
Taxes
Special assessments
Notes

Inventory

Due from other funds

Total assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Due to other funds
Accrued liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue - property taxes

Unavailable revenue - special assessments

Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund balance:
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned

Total fund balances

‘Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
Resources and fund balances

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2012

Other Total
Capital Capital Debt Governmental Governmental
General Improvement Projects Service Funds Funds

$ 2979494 § 518916 $ 370,090 $ 2,194,283 $ 1,666,710 $ 7,729,493

535,980 - . 12,575 343,942 892,497
3,445,240 - - 5702620 1,063,192 10,211,052
- - - 50,338,056 - 50,338,056

- - - - 26,999 26,999

3,444 - - - - 3,444
182,738 - 270,000 258,250 406,734 1,117,722

$ 7,146,896 $ 518,916 $ 640,090 §$ 58,505,784 $ 3,507,577 § 70,319,263

$ 557441 § 889 § - $ 108683 $ 33822 § 700,835
56,706 - - . - 56,706
20,000 386,734 . - 182,739 589,473
245,378 - - - - 245,378
879,525 387,623 - 108,683 216,561 _ 1,592,392

1,458,463 . - 5702620 1,063,192 8,224,275
- - - _ 50,338,056 - _ 50,338,056
1,458,463 - - _ 56,040,676 _ 1,063,192 _ 58,562,331

- - 640,090 2,356,425 2,226,689 5,223,204

- 131,293 - - 166,036 297,329
4,808,908 - - - [164,901] 4,644,007
4,808,908 131,293 640,090 2,356,425 2,227,824 10,164,540

$ 7146896 $ 518916 $ _ 640,090 § 58,505,784 §$ 3,507,577 $ 70,319,263

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

12



CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES TO

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

December 31, 2012

Total Governmental Fund Balances

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial-
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

The cost of capital assets is
Accumulated depreciation is

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and therefore are deferred in the funds.

The following liabilities, are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.

Compensated absences

Net OPEB obligation

Notes payable

Loans payable

General obligation bonds payable
Special assessment bonds payable
Certificates of participation payable
Capital iease payable

Accrued interest on the bonds

Net Position of Governmental Activities

138,625,100
[54,063,654]

[491,407]
[154,350]
[567,814]
[13,661,758]
[59,026,031]
[58,529,603]
[3,285,000]
[1,366,638]

$ 10,164,540

84,561,446

52,387,483

[139,017,152]

[1,834,551]

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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REVENUES

Taxes

Property

Sales

Franchise

Payment in lieu
Charges for services
intergovernmental
Licenses and permits
Fines and fees
Special assessments
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Public health and sanitation
Culture and recreation
Economic development
Miscellaneous
Debt service
Principal
Interest and other charges
Payments on contractual obligations

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess [deficiency] of revenues
over [under] expenditures

Other financing sources [uses]
Transfers in

Transfers [out]
Total other financing sources [uses]

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - Beginning of year
Prior period adjustment
Fund balance - Beginning of year, restated

Fund balance - End of year

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Other Total
Capital Capital Debt Governmental Governmental

General Improvements Projects Service Funds Funds
$ 1,206,519 § 458,619 $ - % 6,076,330 $ 2,196,165 $ 9,937,633
7,128,010 - - 3,787,003 - 10,915,013
1,833,692 - - - - 1,833,692
16,406 - - - - 16,406
2,096,503 - - - - 2,096,503
637,548 - - - 996,563 1,634,111
335,164 - - - - 335,164
1,261,909 - - - - 1,261,909
- - - 2,900,364 - 2,900,364
48,185 - 14,680 523,236 630 586,731
1,127,004 386,635 154,676 210,000 390,099 2,268,414
15,690,940 845,254 169,356 13,496,933 3,583,457 33,785,940
1,405,194 - - - 1,224,885 2,630,079
7,219,381 - - - 362,523 7,581,904
3,071,351 27,626 - - 599,835 3,698,812
1,991,829 - - - - 1,991,829
1,437,283 - - - 6,047 1,443,330
350,956 - - 450,032 174,627 975,615
53,443 - - 131,685 - 185,128
- - - 5,860,237 274,912 6,135,149
361,716 - - 6,242,097 75,494 6,679,307
- - - 1,855,634 - 1,855,634
- - - - 32,427 32,427
15,891,153 27,626 - 14,539,685 2,750,750 33,209,214
[200,213] 817,628 169,356 [1,042,752] 832,707 576,726
1,007,306 - - 850,000 - 1,857,306
- - - - [404,482] [404,482]
1,007,306 - - 850,000 [404,482] 1,452,824
807,093 817,628 169,356 [192,752] 428,225 2,029,550
3,993,315 [686,335] 470,734 2,557,895 1,799,599 8,135,208
8,500 - - [8,718] - [218]
4,001,815 [686,335] 470,734 2,549,177 1,799,599 8,134,990
$ 4808908 § 131,293 $ 640,080 $ 2,356,425 $ 2,227,824 $ 10,164,540

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE WITH THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Total Net Change In Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 2,029,550

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because

Capital outlays to purchase or build assets are reported in governmental funds
as expenditures. However, for governmental activities those costs are shown
in the statement of net position and allocated over their estimated useful lives
as annual depreciation expenses in the statement of activities. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeds depreciation in the period.

Capital outlays 1,210,141
Depreciation expense 3,390,800 [2,180,659]

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount

reported in the governmental funds because interest is recorded as an

expenditure in the funds when it is due, and thus requires the use of current

financial resources. In the statement of activities, however, interest expense

is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due. This is

the amount by which interest increased. 90,004

Revenues for long term special assessment receivables are recorded in the statement
of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not recorded in the
governmental funds. [381,658]

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities, such as compensated

absences and other post employment benefits, do not require the use of current

financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in

governmental funds.
Compensated absences 125,884
Other post employment benefits [43,032]

Bond and temporary note proceeds are other financing sources in the governmental
funds, but they increase long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and do
not affect the statement of activities. Also, governmental funds report the effect

of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first

issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement

of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the

treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Capital lease proceeds [863,862]
Capitalized bond issuance costs and issuance premiums [14,041]
Amortization of issuance costs [245,185]

Repayment of bond principal and bond issuance costs is an expenditure
in the governmental funds, but it reduces long-term liabilities in the statement
of net position and does not affect the statement of activities.

General obligation debt 4,959,370
Notes 77,101
Loans 835,779
Capital ieases 416,746
Certificates of participation 340,000
Changes In Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 5,145,997

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original FEinal [Negative
Revenues
Taxes ‘ $ 10,189,953 $ 9,636,750 $ 9,636,750 $ 553,203
Charges for services 1,842,485 2,350,555 2,350,555 (508,070)
Intergovernmental 637,548 934,874 934,874 [297,326]
Licenses and permits 335,164 355,000 355,000 [19,836]
Fines and fees 1,261,909 925,000 925,000 336,909
Use of money and property 48,185 155,000 155,000 [106,815]
Miscellaneous ' 1,127,004 491,600 491,600 635,404
Total revenues 15,442,248 14,848,779 14,848,779 593,469
Expenditures
City manager ) 1,191,232 933,416 933,416 [257,816]
Building maintenance 73,693 35,000 35,000 [38,693]
Information systems , 139,410 111,154 111,154 [28,256]
Administrative services 860 - - [860]
Airport 53,132 73,235 73,235 20,103
Court 299,069 306,022 306,022 6,953
Ambulance 1,991,829 2,124,156 2,124,156 132,327
Animal shelter 80,581 - - [80,581]
Codes enforcement 210,639 212,108 212,108 1,469
County inspection 12,210 - - [12,210]
Police , 4,709,034 4,972,567 4,972,567 263,533
Fire 2,130,696 2,264,887 2,264,887 134,191
Parks 559,480 674,460 674,460 114,980
Recreation 624,405 687,560 687,560 63,155
Streets ' 3,018,220 . 2,669,940 2,669,940 [348,280]
Engineering 128,107 164,080 164,080 35,973
Opera House 113,645 123,651 123,651 10,006
Swimming pools 143,197 212,314 212,314 69,117
Misc 53,443 405,500 405,500 362,057
Debt principal - 796,846 796,846 796,846
Interest 361,716 - - [361,716]
Total expenditures 15,894,598 16,766,896 16,766,896 872,298
Excess [deficiency] of revenues
over [under] expenditures [452,350] [1,918,117] [1,918,117] 1,465,767

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
16



CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
GENERAL FUND (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Other financing sources [uses]
Transfer in

Total other financing sources [uses]
Net change in fund balance

Budgetary basis
Fund balance, beginning

Prior period adjustment for budgetary basis

Budgetary basis
Fund balance, beginning, restated

Budgetary basis fund balance, ending

GAAP Adjustments:
Accounts Receivable
Taxes Receivable
inventory
Deferred Revenue

Fund balance, ending

Actual

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final [Negative]

$ 1,007.306 $ 1,002,500 $ 1,002,500 $ 4,806

1,007,306

1,002,500

1,002,500 4,806

554,956 $

[915,617] $

[915,617] $ 1,470,573

1,718,251

8,500

1,727,751
2,282,707

535,980
3,445,240

3,444
[1,458,463]

$ 4,808,908

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final [Negative
Revenues
Taxes $ 458619 $ 365173 $ 459,141 $ [522]
Miscellaneous 386,635 400,000 400,000 [13,365]
Total revenues 845,254 765,173 859,141 [13,887]
Expenditures
Contractual 27,626 - 28,000 374
Total expenditures 27,626 - 28,000 374
Net change in fund balances 817,628 765,173 831,141 [13,513]
Fund balance, beginning [686,335] - - [686,335]
Fund balance, beginning $ 131293 $ 765173 $ 831,141 $ [699,848]

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2012

ASSETS
“Current assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles)
Accounts
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Bond issuance costs
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable capital assets:
Land
Depreciable capital assets:
Capital assets
Less: accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Interest payable
Meter deposits payable
Due to other funds
Current portion of compensated absences payable
Current portion of loans payable
Current portion of capital lease payable
Current portion of general obligation bonds payable
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Loans payable
Capital lease payable
General obligation bonds payable

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total net position

Business-Type Activities:
Enterprise Funds

Nonmajor Total
Water and Proprietary Enterprise
Sewer Stormwater Funds Funds
$ 5216,048 $ 714,150 $ 175,059 $ 6,105,257
1,062,355 151,392 178,577 1,392,324
6,278,403 865,542 353,636 7,497,581
234,896 - - 234,896
442,562 - 167,884 610,446
96,619,369 11,983,670 2,283,940 110,886,979
[42,071,234] [946,331] [649,886] [43,667,451]
55,225,593 11,037,339 1,801,938 68,064,870
$61,503,996 $11,902,881 $ 2,155,574 $75,562,451
$ 343049 $ - 8 54,533 $ 398,482
12,799 - 8,034 20,833
195,972 - - 195,972
448,934 - - 448,934
484,660 - 43,589 528,249
16,085 - - 16,065
468,925 - - 468,925
21,200 - 120,091 141,291
995,000 - - 995,000
2,987,504 - 228,247 3,213,751
6,316,556 - - 6,316,556
76,644 - 436,616 513,260
8,768,821 - - 8,768,821
15,162,021 - 436,616 15,598,637
$18,149,525 $ - $ 662,863 $18,812,388
$38,343,551 $11,037,339 $ 1,245,231 $50,626,121
5,010,920 865,542 247,480 6,123,942
$43,354,471 $11,902,881 $ 1,492,711 $56,750,063

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Operating revenue
Charges for services
Miscelianeous

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Personnel services
Contractual services
Commodities
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expense

Operating income [loss]

Nonoperating revenues [expenses]
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenues [expenses]

Income [loss] before transfers

Transfers from [to] other funds
Transfers [out]
Total transfers

Change in net position

Net position, beginning

Prior period adjustment

Net position, beginning, restated

Net position, ending

Business-Type Activities:
Enterprise Funds

Nonmajor Total
Water and Proprietary Enterprise
Sewer Stormwater Funds Funds

$ 9,747,283 $ 781,779 $ 1,604,207 $12,133,269
309,767 - 99,122 408,889
10,057,050 781,779 1,703,329 12,542,158
852,241 50,015 332,641 1,234,897
3,719,839 172,512 956,981 4,849,332
308,954 - 96,276 405,230
1,719,093 239,673 140,296 2,099,062
6,600,127 462,200 1,526,194 8,588,521
3,456,923 319,579 177,135 3,953,637
{607,800] - - [607,800]
[607,800] - - [607,800]
2,849,123 319,579 177,135 3,345,837
[970,000] [482,500] [324]  [1,452,824]
[970,000] [482,500] [324]  [1,452,824]
1,879,123 [162,921] 176,811 1,893,013
41,328,263 12,065,802 668,288 54,062,353
147,085 - 647,612 794,697
41,475,348 12,065,802 1,315,900 54,857,050

$ 43354471 $11,902,881 $ 1,492,711 $56,750,063

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers and users
Cash paid to suppliers of goods and services
Cash paid to employees
Other operating receipts

Net cash provided by [used in} operating activiti'es

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Purchase and construction of capital assets
Principal payments - capital lease
Proceeds - capital lease
Principal payments - general obligation bonds
Interest payments
Loan proceeds
Principal payments - loans payable

Net cash provided by [used in] capital

and related financing activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Change in due to/from other funds
Transfers [out]

Net cash provided by [used in] noncapital

financing activities

Net increase [decrease] in cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
Prior period adjustment

Cash and cash equivaients, beginning, restated

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

Business-Type Activities:
Enterprise Funds

Nonmajor Total
Water and Proprietary Enterprise
Sewer Stormwater Funds Funds

$ 9,902,445 $ 797,731 $ 1,608,561 $ 12,308,737
[4,025,610] [188,132] [1,102,667] [5,316,409]
[851,815] [50,015] [326,254] [1,228,084]
309,767 - 99,122 408,889
5,334,787 559,584 278,762 6,173,133
[218,729] [120,765] [630,728] [970,222]
[10,409] - [56,928] [67,337]
108,253 - 613,635 721,888
[946,965] - - [946,965]
[626,266] - - [626,266]
65,675 - - 65,675
[579,788] - - [579,788]
[2,208,229] [120,765] {74,021} [2,403,015]
557,931 - [29,682] 528,249
[970,000] {482,500] - [1,452,500]
[412,089] [482,500] [29,682] [924,251]
2,714,489 [43,681] 175,059 2,845,867
2,501,559 757,831 500 3,259,890

- - [500] [500]

2,501,559 757,831 - 3,259,390
$ 5216048 § 714150 $§ 175059 $ 6,105,257

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Business-Type Activities:
Enterprise Funds

Nonmajor Total
Water and Proprietary Enterprise
Sewer Stormwater Funds Funds
Reconciliation of operating [loss] income to net cash
provided by [used in] operating activities
Operating income [ioss] $ 3,456,923 $ 319,579 177,135 § 3,953,637
Net cash provided by [used in] operating activities
Depreciation expense 1,719,093 239,673 140,296 2,099,062
[Increase] decrease in accounts receivable 94,473 15,952 4,354 114,779
increase [decrease] in meter deposits payable 60,689 - - 60,689
Increase [decrease] in accounts payable 3,183 [15,620] [49,410] [61,847]
Increase [decrease] in accrued payroll 7,834 . - 6,387 14,221
increase [decrease] in accrued compensated absences [7,408] - - [7,408]
Net cash provided by [used in] operating activities $ 5334787 $ 559,584 $ 278762 $ 6,173,133

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

. NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entit

The City of Junction City, Kansas (the City) was incorporated in 1859 and became a City of the first class on
January 1, 1962. The City operates under a City Commission - Manager form of government. The
accompanying basic financial statements present the City (the primary government) and its component units,
entities for which the City is considered to be financially accountable. The discretely presented component units
are reported in separate columns in the government-wide financial statements (see note below for descriptions)
to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City.

Discretely Presented Component Units. The Public Library (the Library) is operated by a Library Board
which is appointed by the City Commission. The City levies and collects a special library tax to subsidize the
Library's operations. The Library's mill levy can be capped by charter ordinance of the City Commission. Bond
issuances must also be approved by the City. The Library is presented as a governmental fund type.
Separately issued financial statements for the Library are not available.

The Spirit of 76, a Kansas not-for-profit 501(c)(4) corporation, is operated by an eleven member Board
appointed by the Mayor and the Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners. The City has issued several
series of Industrial Revenue Bonds (IRB's) for economic development projects within the City for which the Spirit
of '76 is the tenant under separate financing ieases. In relation to these IRB's the City and the Spirit of '76 have
entered into economic development grant agreements whereby the City agrees to provide Spirit with an
economic development grant in an amount necessary for the Spirit of '76 to make basic rental payments
required by the leases. The Spirit of '76 is presented as a governmental fund type. Separately issued financial
statements for the Spirit of '76 are not available.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities)
report information on all activities of the primary government and its component units. Governmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-
type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary
government is reported separately from the legally separate component units for which the primary government
is financially accountable.

The statement.of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as’
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental funds and the major individual enterprise fund are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting. and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses arc recorded when a liability is incurred, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable
and available. Revenues are generally considered to be available when they are coliectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. A 90-day availability period is used for
revenue recognition for all governmental funds revenues except property taxes. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well
as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment
is due.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual
requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance. There are, however, essentially two
types of these revenues. In one, monies must be expended for the specific purpose or project before any
amounts will be paid to the City; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. In
the other, monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure
to comply with prescribed requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt, or
earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, interest associated with the current fiscal period, and certain state
and federal grants and entitlements are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized
as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the
current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City. While
property taxes receivable are shown on the balance sheet as current assets of the City, they are not recognized
as revenue at year end because statutory provisions prohibit their use until the year for which they were raised
and budgeted. Instead, they are offset by deferred revenue accounts.

The City reports the following major governmentai funds:

The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. This fund accounts for the general
operating transactions of the City including public safety, public works, parks, recreation, and
administration.

The capital improvement fund was established to provide a financing mechanism for the repair, restoration
and rehabilitation of existing public facilities.

The capital projects fund accounts for the acquisition and construction of major facilities other than those
financed by the enterprise funds.

The debt service fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and
interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The water/sewer fund accounts for the operation and maintenance activities of the City's water distribution
and wastewater collection and treatment systems.

The stormwater fund accounts for the operation and maintenance activities of the City's stormwater collection
and treatment systems.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {(Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City's water/sewer function and various
other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues
reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including
special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the water/sewer and
stormwater funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the water/sewer and
stormwater funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Pooled Cash and Investments

Cash and investment of the individual funds are combined to form a pool that is managed by the Director of
Finance. Each fund's equity in the pool is included in "deposits and investments” in the financial statements.
These pooled deposits and investments consist of operating accounts and investments in the State of Kansas
Municipal Investment Pool (MIP) which is overseen by the State of Kansas. The fair value of the City's position in
the MIP is the same as the pool value of the shares. Investment earnings, including interest income, are
allocated to the funds required to accumulate interest; other investment earnings are aliocated based on
management discretion. If a fund is not required to account for its own earnings by law or regulation, the
earnings are allocated to the General Fund.

Cash Flows Statement

For purposes of the cash flows statement, the City considers deposits and highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or iess to be cash equivalents.

Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or
"advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-
wide financial statements as "internal balances.”
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Receivables and Payables (Continued)

All trade accounts receivable are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibies. Management records a trade
accounts receivable allowance based on percentages of collection estimated from the aging of the accounts
receivable.

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered
to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds aiso defer revenue recognition in
connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.

Property Taxes

In accordance with governing state statutes, property taxes levied during the current year are a revenue
source to be used to finance the budget of the ensuing year. Taxes are levied on November 1 of each year,
due and payable November 30, delinquent after December 20, and the following September become a lien on
the property. The County Treasurer is the tax collection agent for all taxing entities within Geary County.

Property owners have the option of paying one half or the full amount of the taxes levied on or before
December 20 during the year levied with the balance to be paid on or before May 10 of the next year. State
statutes prohibit the County Treasurer from distributing the taxes collected in the year levied prior to January
1 of the next year. Consequently, for revenue recognition purposes, taxes levied during the current year are
not available until the ensuing year. At November 1, such taxes are due and are recorded as taxes
receivable, net of anticipated delinquencies, with a corresponding amount recorded as deferred revenue on
the balance sheet of the appropriate funds. This amount is also reported as unearned revenue on the
Statement of Net Position.

Kansas statutes require projects financed in part by special assessments to be paid in instaliments must be
financed through the issuance of general obligation bonds or temporary notes which are secured by the full faith
and credit of the City. Special assessments paid prior to the issuance of general obligation bonds are recorded
as revenue in the appropriate capital project. Special assessments received after the issuance of general
obligation bonds are recorded as revenue in the Debt Service Fund. Further, Kansas statutes require levying
additional general and ad valorem property taxes in the City's Debt Service Fund to finance delinquent special
assessments receivable. Accordingly, special assessments receivable are accounted for within the City's Debt
Service Fund. Special assessments are levied over a 10-year period, and annual installments are due and
payable with annual ad valorem property taxes. The City may foreclose liens against property benefited by
special assessments when delinquent assessments are two years in arrears.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, infrastructure (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and
similar items) and construction in progress are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined as assets with an
initial individual cost of more than $100 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the
life of the asset are not capitalized.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Capital Assets (Continued)

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred
during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized
value of the assets constructed.

Capital assets of the primary government are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives,

Buildings and systems 40 - 50 years
Improvements 20 - 40 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Infrastructure 40 - 75 years

Compensated Absences

Under the terms of the City's personnel policy, City employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying
amounts. Employees are allowed to accumulate vacation leave not to exceed 240 hours. Fire department
employees may accumulate up to 480 hours. The policy prohibits payment for vacation in lieu of time off. Upon
termination or retirement, vacation is paid to employees up to the maximum accumulations noted above.

All regular full-time employees employed by the City on or before December 31, 1994 who have an accumulation
of more than 1,040 sick leave hours, or more than 1,452 sick leave hours for Fire department shift captains, may
accumulate up to the accrued balance of the sick leave hours as of December 31, 1994 which then will become
their accumulated maximum. All regular full-time employees employed by the City after December 31, 1994 may
accumulate up to 1,040 sick leave hours, or 1,452 sick leave hours for Fire department shift captains. Upon
retirement from the City, employees are paid one quarter of his/her accumulated sick leave. To be eligible for the
sick leave payout, the retiring employee must be eligible to receive retirement benefits for service with the City
through the Kansas Public Employees Retirement System (KPERS) or Kansas Police and Firemen's Retirement
System (KP&F). :

All vacation pay is accrued when incurred and the varying amounts of accumulated sick leave are accrued upon
employees becoming KPERS or KP&F retirement eligible in the government-wide and proprietary financial
statements. In the governmental fund financial statements, a liability is accrued when it has matured, for example,
as a result of employee resignations and retirements. :
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Long-Term Obligations

in the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts, as
well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reporied net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are
reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on
debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Deferred Qutflows/inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represenis a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The government has only one type of item that qualifies for reporting in this
category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue for special assessments, is reported only in the
governmental funds balance sheet. The government funds report unavailable revenues from two sources:
property taxes and special assessments. The government-wide statements of net position report only the
unavailable revenue for property taxes. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources
in the period that the amounts become available.

Fund Balance

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance in the following ciassifications:
nonspendable, restricied, committed, assigned and unassigned. Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts
that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form or legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact. Restricted fund balance indicates that constraints have been placed on the use of resources
either by being externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
~governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Commitied fund
balances include amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal
action of the city commission. Assigned fund balances include amounts that are constrained by the City
management’s intent fo be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Unassigned fund
balance represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted,
committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund. When an expenditure is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available restricted amounts are considered
to be spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which committed, assigned, or unassigned
fund balance is available, the following is the order in which resources will be expended: commiited, assigned
and unassigned.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Fund Balance {Continued)

The following is the detail for fund balance classifications in the financial statements:

Major Governmental Funds

Other Total
Capital Debt Capital  Governmental Governmental
General Improvement  Service Projects Funds Funds
Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Economic development  $ -3 - 9§ -3 - $ 816466 $ 816466
Public works - - - - 873,373 873,373
Capital improvements - - - 640,090 - 640,090
Public safety - - - - 536,850 536,850
Debt payments - - 2,356,425 - - 2,356,425
Committed for:
General government - - - - 27,099 27,099
Employee benefits - - - - 125,100 125,100
Capital improvements - 131,293 - - - 131,293
Culture and recreation - - - - 13,837 13,837
Unassigned: 4,808,908 - - - [164,901] 4 644 007
Total Fund Balances $4,808,908 $ 131,293 $2356425 $ 640,090 $ 2,227,824 § 10,164,540

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Loans are extended and secured with a lien on the property and a personal guaranty to local industries under
the revolving loan program. Unsecured credit is extended to customers for water and sewer fees and charges
for services. Intergovernmental receivables include unsecured amounts due from federal, state and county
agencies for various grant programs. Credit is extended to citizens for special assessments levied by the City
for capital improvements. These assessments are secured by liens on the related properties.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012

2. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Budgetary Information

Applicable Kansas statutes require that budgets be legally adopted for all funds unless exempted by a specific
statute. Legal operating budgets are required for the General, Special Highway, Capital Improvement,
Economic Development, Library, Fire Equipment, Utility Charges, Employee Benefits, Drug & Alcohol, Law
Enforcement Trust, and the Debt Service Funds. Budgets are not required for the Military Affairs, Grants,
Sundown Salute, Capital Projects, Rural Housing District, Revolving Loans, Water and Sewer, Roliing Hills Golf,
Stormwater, Spin City Skating and Sanitation Funds. All budgets are prepared utilizing the modified accrual
basis and of accounting.

The statutes provide for the following sequence and timetable in the adoption of the legal annual operating
budget.

1. Preparation of the budget for the succeeding calendar year on or before August 1st.

2. Publication in a local newspaper of the proposed budget and notice of public hearing on the budget
on or before August 5",

3. Public hearing on or before August 15th, but at least ten days after publication of notice of hearing.

4. Adoption of the final budget on or before August 25th.

Kansas statutes allow for the governing body to increase the originally adopted budget for previously
unbudgeted increases in revenue other than ad valorem property taxes. To do this, a notice of public hearing to
amend the budget must be published in the local newspaper. At least ten days after publication, the hearing
may be held and the governing body may amend the budget at that time. The 2012 budget was amended for
the Library, Employee Benefits and the Capital improvement Funds.

Under Kansas statutes management cannot amend the total budget of a fund without approval of the governing
body; however, the statutes permit transferring budgeted amounts between line items within an individual fund
or depariment. Therefore, the legal level of control is at the fund level for all legally adopted budgets. City
Commission approval is not heeded for category changes or budget transfers within an approved budget. Major
category means total personnel services, total contractual services, total materials and supplies, total other
charges, or total capital outiay.

Deficit Fund Balances

The grants fund and roliing hills golf fund had deficit fund balances of $164,901 and $324, respectlvely, at
December 31, 2012.

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

For the year ended December 31, 2012, expenditures and transfer out exceeded appropriations in the utility
charges fund by $ 2,987. These over expenditures were funded by excess reserves and available fund balance
in the funds.
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3. Restatement of Equity

in 2012, it was determined that an adjustment to beginning accrued liabilities was required. Additionally,
the notes payable and leases payable previously recorded in the honmajor business type activities is now
recorded in the government wide activities. The effect of which is as follows:

Business
Governmental Type
Activities Activities
Net Assets - December 31, 2011 $ 3,730,436 $ 54,062,353
Prior Period Adjustment [780,116] 794,697

Net Assets - December 31, 2011, Restated $ 2050320 § 54,857,050

4. Deposits and Investments

Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned.
Kansas statutes require that deposits be collateralized, and that collateral pledged must have a fair market
value equal to 100% of the deposits and investments, less insured amounts, and must be assigned for the
benefit of the City. At December 31, 2012, the City’s deposits were insured by Federal depository insurance
and uninsured deposits were fully collateralized in accordance with the City’s policy.

investments

At December 31, 2012, the City had the following investments:

investment Type Maturities Fair Value
State of Kansas Municipal Investment Pool <1 year $552,154
Credit risk

Kansas statutes authorize the City, with certain restrictions, to deposit or invest in temporary notes, no-fund
warrants, open accounts, time deposits, certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, U.S. Treasury Bills
and Notes, the State of Kansas municipal investment pool, or to make direct investments. The City's
investments in the MIP are rated AAAf/s 1+ by Standard & Poor's.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates, but to the extent possible, the City will
attempt to match its investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. The City is not exposed to significant
interest rate risk.
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4. Deposits and Investments

Custodial credit risk - investments

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City
will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. At December 31, 2012, the City's investments were not exposed to custodial credit risk.

5. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2012 was as follows:

Primary Government:

Restated
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases ‘Balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 13,732,739 § - 8 - $13,732,739
Total capital assets not being depreciated 13,732,739 - - 13,732,739
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 19,100,767 49,761 - 19,150,528

Machinery and equipment 8,675,854 856,030 - 9,531,884

Infrastructure 95,905,599 304,350 - 96,209,949
Total capital assets being depreciated 123,682,220 1,210,141 - 124,892 361
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements 8,744,596 341,845 - 9,086,441

Machinery and equipment 7,843,146 359,625 - 8,202,771

Infrastructure _ 34,085,112 2,689,330 - 36,774,442
Total accumulated depreciation ‘ 50,672,854 3,390,800 - 54,063,654
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 73,009,366 [2,180,659] - 70,828,707
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 86,742,105 $ [2,180,659] $ - §$ 84,561,446
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Capital Assets (Continued)

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 610,446 $ - % - § 610446
Construction in progress 371,810 - 371,810 -
Total capital assets not being depreciated 082,256 - 371,810 610,446
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 26,517,783 - - 26,517,783
Machinery and equipment 8,235,987 849,457 - 9,085,444
Infrastructure 74,791,178 492,574 - 75,283,752
Total capital assets being depreciated 109,544,948 1,342,031 - 110,886,979
Less accumulated depreciation for;
Buildings and improvements 7,580,635 481,761 - 8,062,396
Machinery and equipment 6,692,152 306,655 - 6,998,807
Infrastructure 27,319,694 1,286,554 - 28,606,248
Total accumulated depreciation 41,592 481 2,074,970 - 43667451
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 67,952 467 [732,939] - 87,219,528
Business-type activities capital assets, net $68934723 $ [732,939] $§ 371,810 $ 67,829,974

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 342,259
Public safety 219,643
Public works 2,801,128
Parks and recreation 27,770
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 3,390,800

Business-type activities:

Woater and Sewer $ 1,695,001
Stormwater 239,673
Nonmajor 140,296
Total depreciation expense - business type activities $ 2074970
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6. Defined Benefit Pension Pian

Plan Description

The City participates in the Kansas Public Employees Retirement System (KPERS) and the Kansas Police and
Firemen's Retirement System (KP&F). Both are part of a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan as provided by K.S.A. 74-4901, et seq. KPERS and KP&F provide retirement benefits, life
insurance, disability income benefits, and death benefits. Kansas law establishes and amends benefit
provisions. KPERS and KP&F issue a publicly available financial report (only one is issued) that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. Those reports may be obtained by writing to
KPERS (611 S. Kansas Avenue, Suite 100; Topeka, Kansas 66603-3803) or by calling 1-888-275-5737.

Funding Polic

K.S.A. 74-4919 establishes the KPERS member-employee contribution rate at 4% of covered salary for all
employees hired prior to July 1, 2009. K.S.A. 74-49,210 establishes the KPERS member-employee
contributions rate at 6% of covered salary for all employees hired after July 1, 2009. K.S.A. 74-4975
establishes KP&F member-employee contribution rate at 7% of covered salary. The employer collects and
remits member-employee contributions according to the provisions of section 414(h) of the Internal Revenue
Code. State law provides that the employer contribution rates be determined annually based on the results of
an annual actuarial valuation. KPERS and KP&F are funded on an actuarial reserve basis. State law sets a
limitation on annual increases in the employer contribution rates. The KPERS employer rate established by
statute for 2012 was 7.34%. The City's employer contributions to KPERS for the years ending December 31,
2012, 2011, and 2010 were $248,025, $200,687, and $174,096, respectively, equal to the statutory required
contributions for each year. The City's KP&F uniform participating employer rate established for calendar year
2012 is 16.54%. Employers participating in KP&F also make contributions to amortize the liability for past
service costs, if any, which is determined separately for each participating employer. The contributions to
KP&F for the years ending December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 were $811,992, $726,663, and $631,891,
respectively, equal to the statutory required contributions for each year.

7. Other Postemployment Healthcare Benefits

Description. The City offers postemployment health insurance to retired employees. The benefits are provided
through a single employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan administered by the City. Kansas
statutes provide that postemployment healthcare benefits be extended to retired employees who have met age
and/or service eligibility requirements until the individuals become eligible for Medicare coverage at age 65.
The medical insurance benefit provides the same coverage for retirees and their dependents as for active
employees and their dependents. The benefit is available for selection at retirement and is extended to early
retirees with at least ten years of service and their dependents until the individuals become eligible for
Medicare at 65. The plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report.

Funding Policy. The City provides health insurance benefits to retirees and their dependents in accordance
with Kansas law (K.S.A. 12-5040). Kansas statutes, which may be amended by the state legislature, establish
that participating retirees may be required to contribute to the employee group health benefits plan, including
administrative costs at an amount not to exceed 125 percent of the premium cost for other simitarly situated
employees. The City requires participating retirees to contribute 100 percent of the composite premium cost of
active employees to maintain coverage.

The City appropriates funds annually for the costs associated with this retirement benefit and provides funding

for the expenditures on a pay-as-you-go basis through the General Fund. in 2012, the City contributed
$13,800 to the plan.
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Other Postemployment Healthcare Benefits (Continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City's annual OPER (other post employment
benefit) cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level
of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period of not to exceed thirty years. The following table presents the
components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount contributed to the plan, and changes in
the City's net OPEB cbligation.

Annual required contribution $ 59,272
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 5,566
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution [8,004]
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 56,834
Benefit payments 13,800
Change in net OPEB obligation 43,034
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 111,316
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 154,350

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation are as foliows:

Annual Percentage of
Fiscal Annual OPEB Net Annual OPEB
Year OPEB Cost OPEB Cost
Ended Cost Contributed Obligation  Contributed
December 31,2010 $ 50,834 $ 13,800 $ 71,384 27.15%
December 31, 2011 53,732 13,800 111,316 25.68%
December 31, 2012 56,834 13,800 154,350 24.28%

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of January 1, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $510,319. The City's policy is to fund the benefits on a pay-as-you-
go basis, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $510,319. The covered payroll (annual
payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $8,374,290 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered
payroll was 6.09% percent.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. The valuation includes, for example,
assumptions about future employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trends. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with the past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements, will present in time, multi-year trend information about whether
the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits.
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7. Other Postemployment Healthcare Benefits (Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan and include the types of benefits provided at the time of valuation and the historical pattern of
sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

in the January 1, 2009 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was applied. The
actuarial assumptions included a 2.0 percent discount rate, which reflects the expected returns of asset
classes stipulated in the investment policy underlying idie funds and recent return experience with cash
flows that match the expected benefit payments to the City's current and future retirees. The valuation
assumed annual healthcare cost trend rates of six to ten percent. The UAAL is being amortized using the
level dollar of projected payroll method over a period of 30 years with the remaining amortization period of
29 years. The amortization period used is closed.

8. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; damage to and destruction of assets; business
interruptions; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters; and employee
health, dental and accident benefits. Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for claims arising from
such matters. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the three preceding
years. There have not been significant reductions in coverage from prior years.

9. Commitments and Contingencies

Litigation

There are a number of claims and/or lawsuits to which the City is a party as a result of the ordinary course
of City activities. The City management and legal counsel anticipate that the potential claims against the
City not covered by insurance; if any, resulting from such matters would not materially affect the financial
position of the City.

industrial Revenue Bonds

The City has issued industrial revenue bonds to finance the purchase of land and construction of facilities
leased to local businesses. The lease agreements provide for rentals sufficient to service the related
bonds. The debt service on these issues is paid solely from lease agreements; these issues do not
constitute a debt of the City. The lessees have the option of purchasing the leased properties at any time
during the lease periods for amounts sufficient to retire the related outstanding bonds. At the end of the
lease periods, which conform to bond maturity schedules, the lessees may either purchase the property for
a nominal amount or renew the leases annually at nominal amounts. As of December 31, 2012, industrial
revenue bonds of $25,737,699 are outstanding.

The City has issued several series of industrial revenue bonds (IRB's) for economic development projects
within the City for which the Spirit of '76, Inc. a Kansas not-for-profit 501(c)(41) corporation, is the tenant
under separate financing leases that provide for basic rental payments in amounts sufficient to pay debt
service on the IRB's. For each of the projects, the Spirit of '76 has entered into a sublease agreement with
an entity that occupies and operates the project. The entities occupying and operating the projects are
Ventria Bioscience, Capgemini, Inc., the Junction City Opera House, and Edenspace Systems
Corporation. The City has guaranteed IRB'’s in the form of grant payments with outstanding balances as of
December 31, 2012 of $4,472,979.
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Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Industrial Revenue Bonds (Continued)

In relation to these IRB's the City and the Spirit of '76 have entered into economic development grant
agreements whereby the City agrees to provide Spirit with an economic development grant in an amount
necessary for the Spirit of 76 to make the basic rental payments required by the leases. Pursuant to its
home rule powers, the City has adopted an ordinance authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds
in amounts necessary to fulfill the City's obligations under each of the grant agreements, thus making the
City's obligations to the Spirit of '76 pursuant to the grant agreements binding obligations not subject to
appropriation. The City does not intend to issue such general obligation bonds, but to make the payments
on the dates necessary for the Spirit of '76 to make the basic rent payments.

Long-Term Debt

Changes in long-term debt outstanding are as follows:

Governmental Activities

General obligation bonds
Less: deferred amount on refunding
Plus: unamortized bond premium
Special assessment debt
with government commitment
KDOT Loans Payable
Certificates of Participation
Capital leases payable
Notes payable
Compensated absences
Net other postemployment benefit

obligation

Business-Type Activities

General obligation bonds
Less: deferred amount on refunding
Pius: unamortized bond premium
Revolving loans payable
Notes payable
Capital leases payable
Compensated absences

Balance Balance

January 1, 2012 Adjustment Additions Reductions December 31, 2012

$ 61,866,529 § -3 - $ 2,518,392 § 59,348,137
[512,218] - - [26,045] [486,173]

176,072 - - 12,005 164,067
60,970,581 - - 2,440,978 58,529,603
14,497,537 - - 835,779 13,661,758
3,625,000 - - 340,000 3,285,000

749,234 170,589 863,862 417,047 1,366,638

- 644,916 - 77,102 567,814

617,289 - 315,551 441,433 491,407

111,316 - 56,834 13,800 154,350
$ 142,101,340 % 815,505 § 1,236,247 § 7,070,491 $ 137,082,601 .

Balance Additions/ Balance

January 1, 2012 Adjustment Adjustments Reductions December 31, 2012

$ 10,765,000 $ -3 - $ 965,000 $ 9,800,000
[144,777] - - [31,024] [113,753]

90,563 - - 12,989 77,574

7,299,593 - 65,675 579,787 6,785,481
645,233 [645,233] - - -

167,344 [167,344] 721,888 67,337 654,551

30,977 - - 14,912 16,065

$ 18,853,933 § [812,577] $ 787,563 $ 1,609,001 $ 17,219,918

For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general fund.
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The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for both governmental and business-type

activities.

General obligation bonds payable at December 31, 2012 are comprised of the following issues:

General Obligation Bonds:
Governmental activities:

Business-type activities:

Series 2001-DK
Series 2003-DL
Series 2004-DN
Series 2005-DO
Series 2007-DP
Series 2008-DQ
Series 2008-DR
Series 2008-DS
Series 2008-DT
Series 2009-DU
Series 2010-DW
Series 2010-DX
Series 2011A
Series 2011C

Series 2007-DP

Series 2008-DQ
Series 2009-DV

Series 2011B

Callable
Date

9/1/2011
9/1/2013
9/1/2014
9/1/2015
9/1/2017
9/1/2018
9/1/2018
anytime
9/1/2016
9/1/2019
9/1/2031
9/1/2031
9/1/2034
9/1/2026

91112017
9/1/2018

noncallable

9/1/2036

interest
Rates

3.65% to 4.80%
2.60% to 4.5%
4.00% to 4.75%
4.50% t0 4.875%
4.00% to 5.00%
4.00% to 4.50%
5.75% 10 6.00%
4.125%
5.25%
3.00% to 5.00%
2.00% to 4.50%
2.40% to 6.20%
4.50% to 5.00%
5.00% to 5.75%

4.00% to 5.00%

4.00% to 4.50%
3.00% to 4.00%

5.50%
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$

Original
Issue

1,923,010
6,150,000
4,544,443
6,000,000
9,039,606
1,320,000
10,265,000
382,000
1,995,000
4,222,060
32,681,738
5,690,000
3,835,000
410,000

4,205,000

1,850,000
5,765,000

825,000

Final
Maturity
Date

9/1/2022
9/1/2023
9/1/2024
9/1/12025
9/1/2027
9/1/2028
9/1/2028
9/15/2028
9/1/2024
91712014
9/1/2031

9/1/2031

9/1/2034
9/1/2026

9/1/2027

9/1/2028
9/1/2017

9/1/2036

Outstanding
December 31,
2012

$ 667,840
3,200,000
3,407,225
4,620,000
7,694,956
1,415,000
9,230,000

328,166
1,700,574
3,823,009

14,536,763
4,470,604
3,835,000
410,000

59,348,137

3,675,000

1,695,000
3,705,000

825,000

9,800,000
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10. Long-Term Debt (Continued)
General Obligation Bonds (Continued)

The future annual requirements for general obligation bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2012 are as
follows:

Business
Year Ending Governmental Type

December 31, Activities Activities
2013 $ 5,380,207 $ 1,410,474
2014 5,382,092 1,411,688
2015 5,389,739 1,411,950
2018 5,387,686 1,403,907
2017 5,610,967 1,137,652
2018 - 2022 27,696,490 2,677,832
2023 - 2027 22,163,179 2,677,955
2028- 2032 9,248,517 398,270
2033 - 2036 1,290,000 954,325
Total Principal and interest 87,548,877 13,483,853
Total Interest 28,200,740 3,683,853
Total Principal $ 59,348,137 $ 9,800,000

Special Assessment Bonds

The City's special assessment debt was issued to provide funds for the construction of infrastructure in new
commercial and residential developments. These bonds will be repaid from amounts levied against the
-property owners benefitted by this construction. In the event that a deficiency exists because of unpaid or
delinquent special assessments at the time the debt service payment is due, the government must provide
resources to cover the deficiency until other resources, for example, foreclosure proceeds, are received.
Special assessment bonds at December 31, 2012 are comprised of the following issues:

Final Outstanding

Interest Original Maturity December 31,
Rates Issue Date 2012
Special Assessment Bonds:
Governmental activities:
Series 2001-DK 365%104.80% $ 336,990 9/1/2022 $ 157,160
Series 2004-DN 4.00% to 4.75% 415557 9/1/2024 292,775
Series 2007-DP 4.00%t0 5.00% 15,185,394 9/1/2027 12,660,044
Series 2009-DU 3.00% to 5.00% 30,057,940 9/1/2029 27,216,991
Series 2010-DW 2.00% to 4.50% 17,984,037 9/1/2031 17,163,237
Series 2010-DX 2.40% to 6.20% 1,073,596 9/1/2031 1,039,396
$ 58,529,603
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10. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Special Assessment Bonds (Continued)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for special assessment bonds are as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Principal Interest
2013 $ 2495317 $ 2515493
2014 2,598,784 2,416,382
2015 2,693,158 2,335,000
2016 2,764,983 2,248,634
2017 2,863,806 2,151,540

2018 - 2022 16,139,776 8,934,045
2023 - 2027 19,865,592 5,028,116
2028- 2031 9,108,187 849,398

$ 58529603 § 26,478,608

Capital Leases

The City has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of equipment. These
lease agreements qualify as capital leases and therefore have been recorded at the present value of their
future minimum lease payments as of the inception date. The cost of capital assets financed through capital
leases totaled $3,617,814.

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments for capital leases as of December 31, 2012:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

Principal Interest Principal Interest
2013 $ 439385 $ 45710 $ 141291 § 18,180
2014 381,879 29,765 145,118 14,352
2015 235,411 17,059 149,902 9,568
2016 203,797 8,796 154,208 5,263
2017 94,723 2,506 64,032 907
2018 11,443 289 - -

$ 1,366,638 $ 104,126 $654,551 § 48,270

Subseguent Event

The City entered into a lease agreement to purchase golf course equipment on January 3, 2013 for a total
balance of $88,328. The lease has an interest rate of 3.49% with a final maturity date of January 5, 2018.

On July 2, 2013, the City issued $8,050,000 in general obligation refunding bonds. The interest rates on the

bonds range from 2.00% to 3.00%. Semi annual payments on the bonds begin on September 1, 2013 with the
final maturity date of September 1, 2024.
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10. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Revolving Loans Payable

During 2000, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Health and
Environment's Kansas Water Poliution Control Revolving Fund. The agreement enabled the City to borrow
$3,849,275 to finance improvements to the sewer system. The loan is being repaid over twenty-one years
at an interest rate of 3.52%. Payments of $147,999 were made in 2012, leaving a total outstanding balance
of $1,592,329 which is shown as a liability in the water/sewer fund.

During 2001, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Health and
Environment's Kansas Public Water Supply Loan Fund. The agreement enabled the City to borrow
$744,293 to finance improvements to the water system. The loan is being repaid over twenty-one years at
an interest rate of 4.10%. Payments of $33,719 were made in 2012, leaving a total outstanding balance of
$406,509 which is shown as a liability in the water/sewer fund.

During 2006, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Heaith and
Environment's Kansas Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund. The agreement enabled the City to
borrow $6,002,166 to finance improvements to the Southwest Wastewater Treatment Plant. Payments of
$264,070 were made in 2012, leaving a total outstanding balance of $4,550,701 which is shown as a
liability in the water/sewer fund.

_In the 2009, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Health and
Environment's Kansas Public Water Supply Loan Fund. The agreement enabled the City to borrow
$406,516 to finance improvements to the water system. The loan is being repaid over twenty years at an
interest rate of 3.47%. During 2012, the City made a final draw of $65,675, received loan forgiveness of
$99,872 and made payments of $34,128 leaving a total outstanding balance of $235,942 which is shown
as a liability in the water/sewer fund.

During 20086, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Depariment of Transportation. The
agreement enabled the City to borrow $3,000,000 fo finance significant street improvements. The loan is
being repaid over ten years at an interest rate of 3.86%. Payments of $265,488 were made in 2012,
leaving a total outstanding balance of $1,353,021. The loan is shown as a liability in the governmental
activities column of the statement of net assets.
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10. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Revolving Loans Payable (Continued)

During 2007, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Transportation. The
agreement enabled the City to borrow $6,000,000 to finance significant street improvements. The loan
bears interest at a rate of 3.92%. Payments of $203,280 were made in 2012, leaving a total outstanding
balance of $4,201,471. The loan is shown as a liability in the governmental activities column of the
statement of net assets. The debt service requirements to the maturity date will not be determinable until
the final draws have been made.

During 2008, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Transportation. The
agreement enabled the City to borrow $6,000,000 to finance significant street improvements. The loan
bears interest at a rate of 3.76%. Payments of $188,961 were made in 2012, leaving a total outstanding
balance of $3,915,967. The loan is shown as a liability in the governmental activities column of the
statement of net assets. The debt service requirements to the maturity date will not be determinable until
the final draws have been made.

During 2008, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Transportation. The
agreement enabled the City to borrow $4,071,463 to finance significant street improvements. The loan
bears interest at a rate of 4.36%. Payments of $139,693 were made in 2012, leaving a fotal outstanding
balance of $3,274,505. The loan is shown as a liability in the governmental activities column of the
statement of net assets.

In the 2009, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Transportation. The
agreement enables the City to borrow $107,086 to finance street improvements. The loan bears interest
at a rate of 3.76%. Payments of $4,057 were made in 2012, leaving a total outstanding balance of
$96,744. The loan is shown as a liability in the governmental activities column of the statement of net
assets.

During 2010, the City entered into a loan agreement with the Kansas Department of Transportation. The
agreement enabled the City to borrow $478,845 to finance significant street improvements. The loan
bears interest at a rate of 3.76%. Payments of $18,124 were made in 2012, leaving a total outstanding
balance of $434,577. The loan is shown as a liability in the governmental activities column of the
statement of net assets.

During 2010, the City entered into a locan agreement with the Kansas Department of Transportation. The
agreement enabled the City to borrow $424,734 to finance significant street improvements. The loan
bears interest at a rate of 3.65%. Payments of $16,176 were made in 2012, leaving a total outstanding
balance of $385,473. The loan is shown as a liability in the governmental activities column of the
statement of net assets.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012

10. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Revolving Loans Payable (Continued)

The estimated future annual debt service requirements for the amortizable loans payable are as follows:

Governmental Business-type
Year Ending Activities ~ Activities
December 31, Principal Interest Principal - Interest
2013 $ 871611 $§ 541372 § 468925 $ 202,180
2014 905,873 507,110 483,882 187,271
2015 941,486 471,497 499,151 172,036
2016 978,503 434,480 514,917 156,306
2017 880,699 395,774 531,195 140,064

2018 - 2022 3,917,473 1,607,630 2,683,093 439,375
2023 - 2027 4,753,091 666,068 1,653,021 107,745
2028- 2030 413,022 19,654 51,296 3,164

Total $ 13,661,758 § 4,543,585 § 6,785481 § 1,408,140

Certificates of Participation

The City has issued $ 4,475,000 of certificates of participation series 2007 with an interest rate of 4% and
with a final maturity in 2022. Principal payments are scheduled annually ranging from $120,000 to
$580,000.

Future maturities of the certificates of participation are as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Principal Interest
2013 $ 350,000 $§ 135,894
2014 365,000 121,888
2015 380,000 107,288
2016 395,000 92,088
2017 410,000 76,288

2018 -2022 _ 1,385,000 189,763
$ 3,285,000 $ 723,206
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012

10. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Spin City Note Payable

The City took over operation of the Spin City skating rink in 2008. At that time, the City assumed an
outstanding note payable with a balance of $158,382 from the prior operator of the skating rink. The City took
out an additional $355,000 loan in 2008 to finance the purchase of adjacent property and an additional
building. In the 2009, the City rolled those two outstanding loans into one loan and drew an additional
$326,618 on the new loan for a total outstanding balance of $840,000. The loan bears interest at a rate of
4.45%. Principal payments of $77,101 were made in 2012 leaving an outstanding balance of $567,814. This
balance is shown as a liability in the government wide governmental activities statement.

Future maturities of the note payable are as follows:

Business-type

Activities
Principal ' Interest

2013 $ 80,608 $ 24,007
2014 84,321 20,294
2015 88,205 16,410
20186 92,229 12,385
2017 96,516 8,099
2018-2019 125,935 3,849
$ 567814 § 85,044
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012

Special Assessments

Kansas statutes require special benefit district projects financed in part by special assessments to be financed
through the issuance of general obligation bonds that are secured by the full faith and credit of the City. Further,
state statutes permit levying additional general ad valorem taxes in the City's debt service fund to finance
delinquent special assessments receivable. Accordingly, special assessments receivable are accounted for
within the City's debt service fund. Special assessments are levied over the repayment period of the bonds and
the annual installments are due and payable with annual ad valorem taxes. At December 31, 2012, the special
assessment taxes levied are a lien on the property and are recorded as a special assessment receivable in the
debt service fund with a corresponding amount recorded as deferred revenue. Special assessmenis [net of
allowance] receivable at December 31, 2012 was $50,338,056.

Interfund Transactions

Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2012, consisted of the following:

Due to Due from
Transfers Other Other
in Out Funds Funds
Major funds:
General Fund $1,007,306 $ - $ 20,000 $ 182,738
Capital Improvement Fund - - 386,734 -
Other Governmental Funds - 404,482 182,739 406,734
Capital Project Fund - - - 270,000
Debt Service Fund 850,000 - - 258,250
Water and Sewer Fund - 970,000 484,660 -
Stormwater Fund 482,500 ‘ - -
Nonmajor funds:
Other Proprietary Funds - 324 43,589 -

$ 1,857,306 §$ 1,857,306 $1,117,722 $ 1,117,722

Transfers are used to move revenues from the find that statutes or the budget requires to collect them to the
fund that statutes or the budget requires fo expend them. Nonroutine transfers include transfers to the nonmajor
funds from the general fund, water/sewer fund, and nonmajor governmental funds to provide local support for
grant programs and to reimburse the funds for administrative services provided, and transfers to the capital
projects fund from nonmajor proprietary funds, the water/sewer fund, the special highway fund, and the capital
improvement fund to fund capital projects and from the water/sewer fund to the general fund for administrative
services provided, and transfers to the capital improvement fund from the capital projects fund and general fund
for capital improvement projects, and to the water/sewer fund from the capital projects fund and capital
improvement fund fo fund certain proprietary capital projects, and to the debt service fund from the stormwater
fund to reimburse the fund for its share of debt service payments.

The due to/from is an interfund loan payable within one year.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
December 31, 2012

Schedule of Funding Progress:

Annual UAAL as
Actuarial  Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded  Funded Covered Percent of
Valuation  Value of Accrued AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date Assets (a)  Liability (b) (b)-(a) (a/b) {©) (b-a)/(c)
111/2009 $ - $ 510,319 $ 510,319 00% $ 8,374,290 6.09%
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Special Revenue Funds
Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure for

particular purposes. The special revenue funds used by the City of Junction City, Kansas are:

Economic Development Fund — To account for the joint City/County department that promotes retail and industrial
development within or near Junction City and Geary County.

Utility Charges Fund - To provide street lighting and all gas and elecric for City-owned facilities.

Employee Benefits Fund - To account for all payroll-related benefit expenses including the City's costs of workers’
compensation, social security, retirement, unemployment and health insurance.

Library Fund - To account for the levying of ad valorem property tax on behalf of the Dorothy Bramlage Library
Board.

Special Highway Fund - To account for monies levied by the State of Kansas which produces revenues the City can
use to defray, in whole or in part, the cost of constructing, aitering, reconstructing, maintaining and repairing streets
and highways.

Fire Equipment Fund - To account for revenues and expenses for the purchase of rolling stock equipment for the fire
department.

Drug and Alcohol Fund - To account for the monies provided by as state liquor tax on private ciubs which are to be
expended for the purchase, establishment, maintenance or expansion of services or programs for alcoholism
prevention and education. The City used this fund to support the D.A.R.E. program in the public school system.

Military Affairs Fund - To account for monies received to reimburse the City for all expenses related to a person that
develops relations with Fort Riley officials.

Sundown Salute Fund - To account for the collection of donations used for the City's annual 4" of July community
celebration.

Revolving Loans Fund — To account for revolving loans used to assist business owners with business upgrades in
Junction City.

Grants Fund — To account for grant proceeds'received from various funding sources.
Rural Housing District -
Law Enforcement Trust Fund — To account for funds collected through drug forfeitures. The funds can only be used

for additional technical equipment or expertise, matching funds for federal grants or to defray the costs of protracted
or complex investigation for local police.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
December 31, 2012

Economic Utility Employee
Development Charges Benefits Library
ASSETS

Cash and investments $ 78,740 % - 8% 131,139 § 13,333
Receivables

Property tax 170,651 - - 762,592

Accounts - 374 - -

Notes - - - -

Due from other funds - - - -
Total assets $ 249391 § 374 $ 131,139 $ 775,925
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 5 % - $ 6,039 $ -

Due to other funds - - - -
Total liabilities 5 - 6,039 -

Deferred inflows of resources:

Unavailable revenue - property taxes ’ 170,651 - - 762,592
Total deferred inflows of resources 170,651 - - 762,592
Fund balance: :

Restricted 78,735 - - -

Committed - 374 125,100 13,333

Unassigned ' - - - -
Total fund balance [deficit] 78,735 374 125,100 13,333
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

Resources and fund balances $ 249,391 % 374 § 131,139 § 775,925

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)
December 31, 2012

Special Fire Drug and Military
Highway Equipment Alcohol Affairs
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 486655 $ 151,825 $ 132,492 $ -
Receivables
Property tax - 129,949 - -
Accounts - - - -
Notes - - - 26,999

Due from other funds 386,734 - - -
Total assets $ 873,389 $ 281774 & 132492 $ 26,999
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 16 $ 9,999 § 143 $ 152

Due to other funds - - - 122
Total liabilities 16 9,999 143 274

Deferred inflows of resources:

Unavailable revenue - property taxes - 129,949 - -
Total deferred inflows of resources : - 129,949 - -
Fund balance:

Restricted 873,373 141,826 132,349 -
Committed - - - 26,725
Unassigned : - - - -
Total fund balance [deficit] 873,373 141,826 132,349 26,725

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
Resources and fund balances $ 873389 § 281,774 $§ 132492 $ 26,999




Rural Law

Sundown Revolving Housing Enforcement
Salute Loans Grants District Trust Totals
721 % 400,362 $ -3 - $ 271443 $ 1,666,710
- - - - - 1,083,192
242 341,902 1,424 - - 343,942
- - - - - 26,999
- - 20,000 - - 406,734
963 § 742,264 3 21,424 § - $ 271,443 $ 3,507,577

459§ 4,533 $ 3,708 $ - $ 8,768 $ 33,822
- - 182,617 - - 182,739
459 4,533 188,325 - 8,768 _ 216,561
- - - - - _ 1,083,192
- - - - - 1,063,192
- 737,731 - - - 262,675 2,226,689
504 - - - - 166,036
- - [164,901] - - [164,901]
504 737,731 [164,901] - 262,675 __ 2,227,824

963 $ 742,264 $ 21424 §

$ 271443 § 3,507,577

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Economic Utility Employee
Development Charges Benefits Library
Revenues

Taxes $ 180,937 $ 85923 $§ 493,205 $ 851,854

Intergovernmental - - - -

Use of money and property - - - -

Miscellaneous - - 163,383 27,337
Total revenues 180,937 85,923 656,588 879,191
Expenditures

General government - - 379,861 845,024

Public safety - - - -

Public works - 2,738 - -

Recreation - - - -

Economic development 173,532 - - -

Capital outlay - - - -

Debt service

Principal - - - -

Interest - - - -
Total Expenditures 173,632 2,738 379,861 845,024
Excess [deficiency] of revenues over

[under] expenditures 7,405 83,185 276,727 34,167
Other financing sources [uses]

Transfer [ouf] - [3,481] - -
Total other financing sources [uses] - [3.481] - -
Net change in fund balance 7,405 79,704 276,727 34,167
Fund balances, beginning of the year 71,330 [79,330] [151,627] [20,834]}
Fund balance, end of year $ 78,735 § 374 § 125,100 § 13,333

\%
See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

Revenues
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Interest income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
General government
Public safety
Public works
Recreation
Economic development
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures

Excess [deficiency] of revenues over
funder] expenditures

Other financing sources [uses]
Transfer [out]

Total other financing sources [uses]
Net change in fund balance
Fund balances, beginning of the year

Fund balance, end of year

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Special Fire Drug and Military Sundown
Highway Eauipment Alcohol Affairs Salute

$ - $150,610 $ 83,860 $ - % -
613,680 - - - -
. 50 - - 5573
613,680 150,660 83,860 - 5,573
- 41,836 71,553 - -
136,950 - - - -
- - - - 6,047
136,950 41,836 71,553 - 8,047
476,730 108,824 12,307 - [474]
[400,000] - - [1,001] -
[400,000] - - [1,001] -
76,730 108,824 12,307 [1,001] [474]
796,643 33,002 120,042 27,726 978
$ 873,373 $141826 $ 132,349 § 26,725 $ 504




Rural Law
Revolving Housing Enforcement
Loans Grants District Trust Totals
$ -3 - 5 349,776 § - $ 2,196,165
- 382,883 - - 996,563
- - 630 - 630
13,847 - - 179,909 390,099
13,847 382,883 350,406 179,909 3,583,457
- - - - 1,224,885
- 68,581 - 180,553 362,523
- 460,147 - - 599,835
- - - - 6,047
1,095 - - - 174,627
- 32,427 - - 32,427
- - 274,912 - 274,912
- - 75,494 - 75,494
1,095 561,155 350,406 180,553 2,750,750
12,752 [178,272] - [644] 832,707
- - - - [404,482]
- - - - [404,482]
12,752 [178,272] - [644] 428,225
724,979 13,371 - 263,319 1,799,599
$ 737,731 $§ [164,901] $ - $ 262,675 $ 2,227,824

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

DEBT SERVICE FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Revenues
Taxes
Special assessments
Sales tax
Use of money and property
Miscellaneous revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures
Debt service
Principal
Interest and other charges
Payments on contractual obligations
Neighborhood revitalization
Other

Total expenditures

Excess [deficiency] of revenues
over [under] expenditures

Other financing sources [uses]
Transfer in

Total other financing sources
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning
Prior period adjustment

Fund balance, beginning, restated

Fund balance, ending

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Qriginal Final [Negative
$ 6,076,330 $ 6,275,524 $ 6,275524 $ [199,194]
2,900,364 1,900,000 1,900,000 1,000,364
3,787,003 3,600,000 3,600,000 187,003
523,236 538,492 538,492 [15,256]
210,000 150,000 150,000 60,000
13,496,933 12,464,016 12,464,016 1,032,917
5,860,237 14,375,953 14,375,953 8,515,716
6,242,097 - - [6,242,097]
1,855,634 - - [1,855,634]
450,032 213,547 213,547 [236,485]
131,685 546,500 546,500 414,815
14,539,685 15,136,000 15,136,000 596,315
[1,042,752] [2,671,984] [2,671,984] 1,629,232
850,000 850,000 850,000 -
850,000 850,000 850,000 -
[192,752] [1,821,984] [1,821,984] 1,629,232
2,557,895 - - 2,557,895
[8,718] - - [8,718]
2,549,177 - - 2,549,177

$ 2,356,425 $ [1,821,984] $ [1,821,984] $ 4,178,409

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Revenues
Taxes
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures
Personal services
Contractual services
Commodities
Capital outlay
Neighborhood revitalization

Total expenditures
Net change in fund balances

Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Qriginal Final [Negative
$ 180,937 $ 186,110 $ 186,110 $ [6,173]
- 106,000 106,000 -
180,937 292,110 292,110 [5,173]
- 185,381 185,381 185,381
171,054 122,846 122,846 [48,208]
2,478 4,500 4.500 2,022
- 4,400 4,400 4,400
- 13,770 13,770 13,770
173,532 330,897 330,897 157,385
7,405 [38,787] [38,787] 46,192
71,330 - - 71,330
$ 78,735 $ [38,787] $ [38,787] $ 117,522
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
UTILITY CHARGES FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Original Final [Negative]
Revenues
Taxes 3 85,923 § 45610 3 103,913 3 [17,990]
Total revenues 85,923 45,610 103,913 [17,990]
Expenditures
Contractual services 2,738 3,232 3,232 494
Transfer out 3,481 - - [3,481]
Total expenditures 6,219 3,232 3,232 [2,987]
Net change in fund balances 79,704 42,378 100,681 [20,977]
Fund balance, beginning [79,330] - - [79,330]
Fund balance, ending $ 374§ 42,378 $ 100,681 $ [100,307]

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Variance with

Fund balance, ending $ 125,100

55

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual QOriginal Final [Negative
Revenues
Taxes $ 493205 $ 429501 $ 493,204 1
Miscellaneous revenues 166,095 - 153,975 12,120
Total revenues 659,300 429,501 647,179 12,121
Expenditures
Personnel services 285,129 32,677 233,000 [52,129]
Contractual services 94,732 170,000 170,000 75,268
Neighborhood revitalization - 47,918 28,100 28,100
Total expenditures 379,861 250,595 431,100 51,239
Net change in fund balances 279,439 $ 178,906 § 216,079 63,360
Budgetary basis
Fund balance, beginning [154,339]
Budgetary basis fund balance, ending 125,100
GAAP Adjustments:
Accounts Receivable -



CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
LIBRARY FUND

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Revenues
Taxes
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Contractual services

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balances
Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.

Variance with

Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive

Actual Original Final [Negative
$ 851,854 % 856,019 §$ 851,854 § -
27,337 - 27,337 -
879,191 856,019 879,191 -
845,024 819,400 858,357 13,333
845,024 819,400 858,357 13,333
34,167 36,619 20,834 18,333
[20,834] - - [20,834]
$ 13,333 $ 36,619 $ 20,834 $ [7,501]
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
SPECIAL HIGHWAY FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Revenues
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures
Contractual services

Total expenditures

Excess [deficiency] of revenues
over [under] expenditures

Other financing sources [uses]
Transfer out

Total other financing sources [uses]
Net change in fund balances
Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive

- Actual Original Final [Negative]
3 613,680 $ 490,370 $ 490,370 $ 123,310
613,680 490,370 490,370 123,310
136,950 295,000 295,000 158,050
136,950 295,000 295,000 158,050
476,730 195,370 195,370 281,360
[400,000] [400,000] [400,000] -
[400,000] [400,000] [400,000] -
76,730 [204,630] [204,630] 281,360
796,643 - - 796,643
3 873,373 $ [204630] § [204630] $ 1,078,003
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
FIRE EQUIPMENT FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Qriginal Final [Negative
Revenues
Taxes $ 150,610 $ 152,292 $ 152,292 % [1,682]
Miscellaneous revenues 50 - - 50
Total revenues 150,660 152,292 152,292 [1,632]
Expenditures
Commodities 31,301 10,000 10,000 [21,301]
Contractual 10,535 133,500 133,500 122,965
Capital outlay - 10,694 10,694 10,694
Total expenditures 41,836 154,194 154,194 112,358
Net change in fund balances 108,824 [1,902] [1,902] 110,726
Fund balance, beginning 33,002 - - 33,002
Fund balance, ending $ 141826 3 [1,902] $ [1,902] $ 143,728

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

Revenues
Taxes

Total revenues

Expenditures
Personnel services
Commodities
Contractual services

Total expenditures
Net change in fund balances
Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, ending

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.

DRUG AND ALCOHOL FUND

IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Qriginal Final [Negative]

$ 83,860 $ 85410 § 85410 % [1,550]
83,860 85,410 85,410 [1,550]
70,147 67,359 67,359 [2,788]

- 10,000 10,000 10,000

1,406 40,000 40,000 38,594

71,553 117,359 117,359 45,806
12,307 [31,949] [31,949] 44 256
120,042 - - 120,042

3 132,349 $ [31,949] $ [31,949] $ 164,298
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - ACTUAL AND BUDGET
LAW ENFORCEMENT TRUST FUND
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Actual Qriginal Final [Negativel

Revenues

Miscellaneous revenues 3 179,908 $ 148,000 $ 160,000 $ 19,909
Total revenues 179,908 148,000 160,000 19,909
Expenditures

Personnel services 18,624 18,382 18,382 [242]

Commodities 159,634 148,000 350,000 190,366

Contractual services 2,295 - - [2,295]
Total expenditures 180,553 166,382 368,382 187,829
Net change in fund balance [644] [18,382] ~ [208,382] 207,738
Fund balance, beginning 263,319 - - 263,319
Fund balance, ending $ 262675 % [18,382] $ _[208.382] $ 471,057

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Rolling Hills Golf Fund - To account for the operation and maintenance of the municipal golif course.
Spin City Skating Fund - To account for the operations and maintenance of a skating rink.

Sanitation Fund — To account for the operation and maintenance of the sanitation system operated within the City.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2012

Total
Nonmajor
Rolling Hills Spin City Proprietary
ASSETS Golf Skating Sanitation Funds
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ - % 28454 $ 146,605 $ 175,059
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)
Accounts - - 178,577 178,577
Total current assets - 28,454 325,182 353,636
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable capital assets:
Land - 167,884 - 167,884
Depreciable capital assets:
Capital assets - 1,298,643 985,297 2,283,940
Less: accumulated depreciation - [208,106] [441,780] [649,886]
Total capital assets - 1,258,421 543,517 1,801,938
Total assets $ - § 1286875 $ 868699 $ 2,155,574
Liabilities:
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 324§ 14,059 $ 40,150 $ 54,533
Accrued payroll - 2,676 5,358 8,034
Total current liabilities 324 16,735 45,508 62,567
Noncurrent liabilities:
Leases payable - - 556,707 556,707
Due to other funds - 43,589 - 43,589
Total noncurrent liabilities - 43,589 556,707 600,296
Total liabilities $ 324 $ 60,324 $§ 602215 $ 662,863
Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ - $ 1,258,421 $ [13,190] $§ 1,245,231
Unrestricted [324] [31,870] 279,674 247,480
Total net position $ [324] $ 1,226551 $ 266484 $ 1,492,711

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Personal services
Commodities
Contractual services
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income [loss]

Nonoperating revenues [expenses]
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenues [expenses]

Income [loss] before transfers

Transfers from [to] other funds
Transfers [out]
Total transfers

Change in net position

Net position, January 1

Prior period adjustment

Net position, January 1, beginning

Net position, December 31

Total
Nonmajor
Rolling Hills Spin City Proprietary
Golf Skating Sanitation Funds

$ - $ 143203 § 1,461,004 $ 1,804,207
- .70,639 28,483 99,122

- 213,842 1,489,487 1,703,329

- 127,442 205,199 332,641

- 24,138 72,138 96,276

- 64,391 892,590 956,981

- 41,621 98,675 140,296

- 257,692 1,268,602 1,526,194

- [43,750] 220,885 177,135

- [43,750] 220,885 177,135
[324] - - [324]
[324] - - [324]

[324] [43,750] 220,885 176,811

6,339 616,350 45,599 668,288
[6,339] 653,951 - 647,612

- 1,270,301 45,599 1,315,900

3 [324] $ 1,226,551 $ 266,484 $ 1,492,711

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers and users
Cash paid to suppliers of goods and services
Cash paid to employees
Other operating receipts
Net cash provided by [used in] operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Principal payments - capital lease

Proceeds - capital lease
Purchase and construction of capital assets

Net cash provided by [used in] capital
and related financing activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Increase in due to

Net decrease in cash and cash eguivalent

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
Prior period adjustment

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning, restated

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

See independent auditor's report on the ﬁnanciall statements.

Total
Nonmajor
Rolling Hilis Spin City Proprietary
Golf Skating Sanitation Funds
- $ 143,203 $ 1,465358 $ 1,608,561
- [67,278] [1,035,389] [1,102,667]
- [126,413] [199,841] [326,254]
- 70,639 28,483 99,122
- 20,151 258,611 278,762
- - [66,928] [56,928]
- - 613,635 613,635
- - [630,728] [630,728]
- - [74,021} [74,021]
- 8,303 [37,985] [29,682]
- 28,454 146,605 175,059
500 - - 500
[500] - - [500]
- 3 28454 $ 146605 $ 175,059
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Total

Nonmajor

Rolling Hills  Spin City Proprietary
Golf Skating Sanitation Funds

Reconciliation of operating [loss] income to net cash
provided by [used in] operating activities

Operating income [loss}] $ - $ [43,750] $ 220,885 $ 177,135
Net cash provided by [used in] operating activities
Depreciation expense - 41,621 98,675 140,296
[Increase] decrease in accounts receivable - - 4,354 4,354
Increase [decrease] in accounts payable - 21,251 [70,661] [49,410]
Increase [decrease} in accrued wages - 1,029 5,358 6,387
Net cash provided by [used in] operating activities $ - $ 20151 $ 258611 $ 278,762

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements.
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Statistical Section
(Unaudited)

This part of the City of Junction City’s financial report presents detailed information as a context for understanding
what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says
about the City’s overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s financial performance
and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most significant local revenue source,
the property fax.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s current levels of
outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. ‘

Demographic and Economical Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment
within which the City’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the
City’s financial report related to the services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Annual Financial Report
for the relevant year. The City implemented GASB Statement 34 in 2003; schedules presenting government-wide
information include information beginning in that year.
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Expenses
Governmental Activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Economic Development
Public health and sanitation
Payments on other obligations (see note)
Interest long term debt
Total governmental expenses

Business-tvoe activities
Water and sewer
Rolling hills golf
Sanitation
Internal Services
Storm water
Spin City skating
Total business-type activities expenses

Tatal primary government expenses

Proaram Revenues
Governmenta! activiies:
Charges for Service
Intergovernmental
Operating grants and contributions
Other
Capital grants and contributions
Total governmental activities program revenues

Business-type activities:
Charges for service
Water and sewer
Rolling hills golf
Sanitation
Storm water
Spin City skating
Capital grants and contributions
Total business-type aclivilies program revenues

Total primary govemment program revenues
Net (Expense) Revenue
Governmental activities
Business-type activities
Total primary government net expense

General Revenu

d other Changes In Net Asssts
o

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)
{Accrual Basis of Accounting)

(UNAUDITED)

$ [13,165,977] $ [10,391,784] $ [18,711,004] $ [14,861,359) $ (14,093,867} $ (20,016349] $ 8,712,594
.755] 515, 819 344,475 415.736 304.576

908.072 21

$ [12.257,905] $ [10.413,539]

15,36° 199,

$ [18.226.371) § [14.661,540) $ [13.749.392] §_ [19.600.613]

$__8.017.170

2003 2004 2005 2008 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
S 4210218 § 5138247 S 11839659 S 7,203604 S 6842828 S 11965528 S 6181566 § 5078582 S 3216686 S 2.972,338
5,341,318 5,880,245 5,854,063 6,621,168 6,675,397 7,410,915 7,938,190 7.016,947 8,004,613 7,466,537
7,899,620 3,188,705 4,560,855 5,050,327 8,488,528 10,061,261 9,097,814 8,824,171 4756,348 6,220,145
1,041,589 1,473,781 1,580,500 1,695.816 2,060,480 1,744,522 1,005,475 654,829 1,030,077 1,414,550
8 . . - - - 238,548 742,286 735,663 975,615
) ) . . . . - 1,134,918 1,803,687 2,034,862
. . - . - - - . 1,516,382 1,865,634
N . - - : - 5.721,931 6,698,600
18492754 _ 15380978 _ 23835077 _ 20669915 __ 24.067.243 31.182.226 29.273664 __ 27.852.056
3,989,317 5,574,030 5,843,858 5,900,823 6,509,210 6,489,970 7,640,329 7,210,683 7,356,961 7,207,927
561,998 555,660 525,250 523,165 543,841 548,355 555,128 477,042 332,836 -
779.359 806,518 1,026,459 835574 235241 1,005,900 1,236,329 1,366,544 1,440,358 1,268,602
266,589 21,755 - - - - - . . N
B N . B - - 253,430 248,341 408,349 452,200
. - - - - 230156 233.779 192,967 179,062 257,562
5,507,263 6.957,963 7,395,576 7,259,562 7.988.292 8.274.381 9.918,995 9493577 9.717.566 9.196.321
$_24.000017 § 22338041 $ 31230653 § 27.920477 § 32055535 $ 39456607 § 40591.363 § 38767241 S 37.560.622 S 38.907.430
§ 3374872 § 1339348 S 1549052 § 2988074 $ 2828266 $ 2144822 $ 2083131 S 250503 § 3032305 $ 3693576
1,029,484 965,626 754,690 934,385 499,115 484,68 - - - B
358,431 521,115 941,948 472,904 363,903 2,336,515 3,627,056 1,669,4% 1,626,703 1,634,111
563,090 2,163,105 1,818,957 1,407,233 1,896,914 451,597 - - . .
- : 50.426 5.960 4385178 5749283 __ 33674775 4.875.055 6.432.843 2518.708
5326.777 5124073 9,973,376 11.165.877 9040587 11,091,851 7.
5,107,888 5,574,030 5,271,541 6,112,332 6,918,957 6,948,085 7,154,180 7,857,651 8,527,278 0,747,283
559,882 555,660 562,748 512,630 514,797 534,189 487.340 437,633 378,200 -
837,565 806,518 1,025,920 834,419 899,013 972,972 1,331,658 1,263,252 1,457,127 1,461,004
B - - . - - 464,447 722,181 836,450 781,779
. . . B - 234,871 173,469 167,643 143,004 143,203
- - - - . - 612,477 . N -
6.505.335 6,936,208 6,880,200 7,459,381 8.332.767 8.690.117 __ 10.223.571 10.448.340 _ 11342059 _ 12133269
§_11.832112 § 11925402 § 12004282 § 13.267.937 § 18306143 $_ 19.855994 S 49608533 §_ 10.497.927 § 22433910 S 19.079.662

$ [20,224,077) $ [16,760,205) $ [21,864,716]
954.763 1.624.493 2,936.948

$__[19.269.314

§_[15.135.712} $ [18.927.768)

vernrmental
Taxes
" Property taxes $ 4818516 $ 5020206 5 5163701 $ 5245456 $ 6397274 $ 6733809 S 8303953 § 8892436 § 9027993 § 9.937.633
Sales taxes 3,884,082 4,434,424 4,523,234 5,581,003 5,911,808 6,108,101 6,194,501 6,790,642 10,578,865 10,815,013
Franchise taxes 1,202,226 1,225,289 1,316,876 1,388,710 1,527,318 1,667,853 1,700,570 1,807,406 1,768,891 1,833,692
Motor vehicle taxes 688,416 717,496 744,830 790,008 881,400 744210 - - - -
Paymentin lieu of property tax - - - - - - 26,026 18,080 15,537 16,406
Invesiment earnings 25474 20,239 91,918 154,840 - - 78,974 487,162 115,395 586,731
Miscellaneous - - - - - - 15,575 1,226,273 1,564,746 2,268414
Transfers 330.810 60,000 50.000 438.262 - 1.950.000 1.122.955 158.000 380,185 1.452,824
Total governmental activiiies 10.949.534 11,890,559 14.717.900 17.205.073 17.448.554 19.380.999 23.461.812 27.010713
Business-type acfivities
Miscellaneous - - - - - - 212 305,358 296,566 408,889
Transfers 330.810] 60.000] [50.000] 438.262] - [1.850.,000] {1.122,955] [159.000] 389, 185] 1,452.824]
Total business-type activities 330.810] [60.000} [50.000] [438.262) § - 1,950,000] {1.122743] 146,358 {92.619) (1.043,935)
Total primary government S 10618724 $ 11426654 $ 11.840.55¢ $ 13.160.017 $ 14717900 § 15255073 $ 16.325.811 S  19,527.357 §$ 23.360.193 § 25.966.778
Change in Net Assets
Governmental activities S [2216443) $ 1094870 $ [6820445) $ [1,263,080] § 624,033 5 [2,811276] $ 26.161.148 § [843,078] § 6701607 $ 5145997
Business-type activities 577.262 81,755 565.367 238.443] 344,475 1.534.264] 1818.167] 1,101.121 1,531.874 1.893.013
Total primary government $ [1633181] 8 _ 1013115 § [7.385812) § [1.501523] § 968,508 § 4.345540) 3 25342981 § 258043 $ 8233481 $  7.038.010
Note {1): The City began to report accrual i wheniti GASB 34 in fiscal year 2003
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(UNAUDITED)

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

ANNUAL WATER AND WASTEWATER TAP SALES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Water Meter Wastewater
Year Taps Sold Taps Soid
2003 n/a n/a
2004 n/a n/a
2005 n/a n/a
2006 n/a n/a
2007 n/a n/a
2008 n/a n/a
2009 127 123
2010 126 125
2011 98 100
2012 100 99

Source: City of Junction City Utility Department

n/a - information is not available
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(UNAUDITED)

Customer

Amour Swift-Eckrich
Grandview Plaza
Geary Community Hospital
Valley View Estates
Penn Enterprises
SPSE, Incorporated
Cedar Point Car Wash
Sapp Brothers Car Wash
Winegarden & Hammons
UsD 475

Subtotal (10 largest)

Balance from other customers

Grand Total

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
TEN LARGEST UTILITY CUSTOMERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

Fiscal Year 2012

Water Revenue

Sewer Revenue

Amount Percent Amount Percent

$ 198,892.75 4.43% Geary Community Hospital 48,710.40 1.04%
131,235.71 2.92% Green Park Apartments 15,241.90 0.32%
63,431.85 1.41% Penn Enterprises 11,099.90  0.24%
24,198.00 0.54% SPSE, incorporated 10,792.10  0.23%
17,648.22 0.39% Sapp Brothers Car Wash 10,414.00 0.22%
15,058.45 0.34% Cottonwood Estates 9,981.75 0.21%
13,916.14  0.31% Cedar Point Car Wash 9,868.70 0.21%
13,439.49 0.30% Armour Swift-Eckrich 9,557.10 0.20%
12,993.57 0.29% Watco Mechanical Services 9,456.40 0.20%
12,735.72 0.28% Holiday Inn Express 7.621.00 0.16%
$ 503,5649.90 11.21% Subtotal (10 largest) $ 142,743.25 3.03%
$3,986,753.10 88.79% Balance from other customers $4,554,968.75 96.97%

$4,490,303.00 100.00%  Grand Total $4,697,712.00 100.00%

Note; Information from nine years ago is not available.
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(UNAUDITED)

(PER $1,000 OF ASSESSED VALUATION)

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

LAST TEN TAX YEARS
City Direct Rates

Fiscal Basic Debt Total
Year Rate Service Library Direct Rate
2003 37.672 14.123 4.254 56.049
2004 36.966 14.248 4.581 55.795
2005 36.166 15.001 4194 55.361
2006 29.692 13.980 4.064 47.736
2007 38.653 14.961 3.780 47.394
2008 27.911 17.032 3.329 48.272
2009 24314 20.494 3.666 48.474
2010 26.840 16.750 4.708 48,282
2011 10.589 35.138 4.623 50.350
2012 10.233 33.172 4436 47.841

Source; Geary County Clerk
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Geary State of

Usb County Kansas Total

35.848 54.691 1.500  148.088
40.177 53.714 1.500 151.186
38.982 56.128 1.500  151.971
46.524 55.741 1.500  151.501
44685 50.468 1.500  144.057
43.261 46.663 1.500  139.696
45.566 49.598 1.500 145.138
45.445 53.126 1.500  148.353
45.499 53.390 1.500  150.605
45.823 52.205 1.500  147.369
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

Estimated
Debt Percentage
Government Unit: Qutstanding Applicable
Geary County $ 33,440,000 77%
U.S.D. #475 School District 31,205,000 77%
Total Estimated Overlapping Debt 64,645,000
DIRECT DEBT
City of Junction City 150,713,982 100%
DIRECT & ESTIMATED OVERLAPPING DEBT $ 215,358,982

Source: Office of Geary County Clerk

(1) Information represents the share of the respective debt which are obligations of the

citizens of Junction City.
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Estimated
Share of
Direct and
Overlapping
Debt

$ 25,748,800

24,027,850

49,776,650

150,713,982

$ 200490632
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

Utility Less: Net Debt Service
Fiscal Service Operating Available Principal &
Year Charges Expenses Revenue Interest Coverage
2003 5,107,888 $ 3,833,889 $ 1,273,999 $ 1,055,990 121%
2004 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
2005 5,824,026 4,729,261 1,094,765 1,262,284 87%
2008 6,112,332 4,062,138 2,050,194 1,379,923 149%
2007 7,152,798 5,110,181 2,042,617 1,448,373 141%
2008 6,939,622 4,427,980 2,511,642 1,608,536 156%
2009 7,665,298 6,131,616 1,533,682 1,915,830 80%
2010 8,009,136 7,712,856 1,974,702 1,678,422 118%
2011 8,719,225 5,180,850 3,638,375 896,655 395%
2012 10,004,859 5,935,892 4,068,967 1,323,232 307%

n/a - information is not available

83



This page intentionally left blank.



(UNAUDITED)

uonejndod Aluno) A1e95) |8J0} 8y} JO 9% /g 10} sjunodoe uoljejndod s Apg uogounp “Ajunog Aleec) 1oy
passaldxs s| ajey "S82IAI8S UoBWLIOU| Jodlely Joge] ‘s@oinosay uewny jo juswpedsaq sesuey (g)

Aunon Aiesn) sjussaldal snsua) Jo neaing ‘sisAjeuy owouood jo neaing (g)

Aunon Aless) 1oy uonewIoiul ogeT Jo Juswieds( sesuey| ()

snsue) Jo neaing ‘ealawiio) Jo Juswuedsq 's'n (1)

funog A1esn ‘G/ i 1ouIsIq Jooyos patiun (i)

joelisqy eoysiie)s sesuey (9)

e/ e/ G06'. e/u e/u GLO'vZ z1oe
e/u L9 1GL'8 e/u e/u oty Loz
e/u 6L 898°/ g/u B/u £6e'eZ oLoz
¥°0¢ A £86'9 e/u B/ 1€6'L2 6002
e/ Az 8¥0',L Y05 LY e/u 129'02 8002
e/u 6'¢ ¥8.'9 Z16'9¢ 000'G£€'060°L 650'0¢ 1002
0'6¢ 61 L'9 L16°C¢ 000'5¥2'696 90191 9002
e/u 29 9zv'9 G81'6¢ 000'¥¥5'258 20791 $002
g/u 69 £90'9 692'82 000'102'66. 8z8'9L 002
e/ ¥'9 Z10'9 6zL'sz ¢ 000'8L0'9¢. 206°'/L £002
(9) oby (g) o1y () uaujjolug  (g) swioou| (Z) swoouj (1) uoneindod IEEYN
uBipsiy yswAhodwaun looyog eyden J1ad [euosiad jeosl4
alland

SHVYIA WOSId N3IL 1SV

SOLLSILVLS OINONOO3 ANV JIHdYHO0ON3AA
SVYSNVX ‘ALID NOILONNC 40 ALID

<
[¢0)




(UNAUDITED)

8|ge|iAR JOU SI UCHBLWIOI - B/U

Aa|ry pue A1esn ‘senunod om) sueds As(iy Ho ‘uosuies) Awiy salels pajiun ‘Asiry o4 Aq pepiaold uoizewlouj (2)
*Auo |ejo} Ajuno) A1eas) uo paseq st uswho|duis Al
fejo] jo ebejusoiad ‘2L02/LE/Z) J0 sk Juawdojars olwouoog Alunog Areany/Ay uonounp AQ papiaold uopeuwdoju) (1)

eu eu %60 oct suojlig
eu eu %60 ocl 3J17 J0Iuag g solE}ST MIIA Asjjen
%10 8y %L} st Buussuibuz Asjjep mey
%96’} 62¢ %E’L 881 Ay uonoune yo Ao
%iih ogk %L 00z Aunog Atesn
96°'8 Ly0l %G'C 0G¢e J8jua) uolnguisi( 48x3o0f1004
%S0T ove v %6°C 0o¥ "OU] YoIp{oH Inoluy
%00°0 eu %0°€ Siy Jsjuag Jadng He-{B
%CLE ele]s %P'E Gly lendsoH Ayunwwo Aesn
%08°L ci6 %L'6 0se’} JouIsiq [ooYos GL# 'A'SN
eu eu %0°LS gge'e (s10j0B13U00 Buipnoul) seafojdws UBIAID JBYID
G/€ puny pajeudordde-uon
0S5 saakojdwa jelspa} Jay0
Sye'e saafojdws puny pajendoidde Auuy o ydag
eu Lsp'e (2) soinisg 1A1D Aoy Ho4
Juswikojdws saako|dwg juswAoldwsy sasAojdwy
Ano) [ejol Jo Jaquinpn Auno) |ejo] J0 JaquInN
obejusosed pajewnsy abejusorad pajews3
100C zloe

OOV SHVIA NIL ANV dVIA LNIHHND
(1) SHAAOTING TYIONIYd
SVYSNWM ‘ALID NOILONNE 40 ALID

85




(UNAUDITED)

*Ajuo seekoldws sw-|In] s1 0L0Z "seskojdwa swi-Led pue jjnj apnjoul sieak snojnsld,

‘sjueld Jajema)sem pue Jsjem ‘suonesodo sxtom dignd s,A10 a} o} 10JIRIIUOD BY) IBIBAA BII0BA JO Seafojdwa swedaq saakojdws J9ans g€ SAID 8yl ‘€00z Ul (1)

881 1G] 891 244 424 102 00¢ |78 69l 99!
y9'0L {0 |eL'S |6 L8 6 L0602 |€¥'6 [0Z {S¥OL jle  10S9°S L jov'y  (S°L |gve (¥ W v
SyL iyl J€LS 16 0.8 {6 L0'6  |0Z {E¥'6 {02 SV Ol {iZ |0S'S Vo jov'y  |sL jeve v W2 iv
161 (9
0’88 [89L |/C¥6 (8P| €v6  |67) |€6°06 (102 [/1G°06 |261 [5G°68 |[08) |0G'¥6 168F [09'G6 |€9L 18G°/6 |19l [6G/6 [291
¥90°L |2 8L'e |§ 91'e 1§
901 |2 po0 |} €90 |1 ¥e'L 1971 |S2'8 |GLL[Z¥9 |E€L  |0S9  je€lL  [¥L'9 [GLL [46'9 |2} |€6'9 |G'LL
0 0 0 0 0 0 vr's  {2i |0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0__|o 0
61t 19 Iy L ey |L 160 |2 ¥6'0 |2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
€50 |1 ¥90 |1 L2) 12 ¢l |self/e9 |geb|elv |§6 0624 |SL (k0L el jl2L (gL [eTl (el
8¢9 |2l |¥90 |I €90 [} 0o0_ o 000 |0 000 |0 000 {0 000 |0 000 1|0 000 {0
091 |E 1671 € a6’ L € 9g’) € G9'L |9°€ [6¥L € gl € oLl e 4 2 I L) 0
90t |2 661 |92 861 192 |60 ¢ ¥6°0 |2 6v'1 |€ §Z2¢ (99 |[s€C v e |y e (v
16l |9
091 |€ 661 |92 86V 19¢ |lZ¢ |S 0ge |4 8¥'e |1 0s'e L LA T > e | Loe IS
6182 |€G |S8'lE [0S G9'lE |09 |0¥'GC |99 [90vZ |LS |8€¥C |6V  |00VZ |8¥ |18°GZ |vP 11992 [vv [26'8C |8¥
L1°9€ 189 {ELOV |€9 1868 |€9 (99'¢ |e¢lL |ee9¢ |L/ |28'QE |¥. [0G°9¢ (€L |26y |62l €Ly |LL |IZLl¥ |5'89
09'L |€
000 |0 FX4 2 4 L2y |2 9e’l € e 6v’L {€ 05’1 |€ 9Ll |E 281 |e 18’ |€
S00 |} ¥90 |1 x4 2 4 18l ¥ 681 ¥ 6¥'C 1S ¢ § 0 0 0 0 10 0
S00 |1 Y90 |1 €90 |} yOZ _[S¥ lel'e Sy jeL'e€ |SL G2  |S0L |18'€ |99 |EE€€ |GG 2§y G4
99¢ IS 606 {8 €y |2 ¢Le |9 0g'e |2 66'C {9 05'¢ _|S G0'¢ |19¢ jcle [S€ |G |ST
% ‘ON % ‘ON % ON| % ON| % J©ON| % |™©N % ‘ON % ‘ON % |ON| % | ON
[42\14 1102 «0102 600¢ 800¢ 2002 9002 5002 ¥002 £00¢

SYSNYM ‘ALID NOLLONNF 40 ALID

SHVIA TVOSId NIL 1SV
INIWIHMVYd3A A8 SFIA0TANZ INIL-TINA

seakojdwig swi-in4 [ejoi

ssiAnoy adAj-ssauisng fejo |
19MBG/19)BM
SISeM plIloS

saIAnoY adAj-1,A09) 104 [0
ISIN0Y JJOS) smopediy Buljoy
Ao uids

SHY AN uonoung

syed

uopealinsy
Uoesnay g almng

(1) sieans
BuisnoH djgH Jles
Buusaubuz
SSIOM Sland

unoo fedpiuniy
uogoadsu|/sepo)
juswipedaq SNT/eud
juawpedsq 8diod
Rafes oiand

aoueusjulely Buipjing
Juswdojaaaq 21WouoaT
S9OIAISS UOBWIOL]
$90IN0S9Y uewny
UONBISILWPY |elauss)
INENE GRS

SEMAIOY [EIUSWULIBA0Y)

86




000'G12
000°059'}

000'029'S
000°06L ‘€

808
9t0.)

082
cLiL

cees
96€C

LGy
866

N
(=]
N

(UNAUDITED)

991'818
000'v69't

000'912'9
000'892'¢

Levi
89hvl

[4¢icr4
Gcol

velL
2444

G0V
ol

000'S¥L
000'€.8'L

000'vEL'S
PLY'BLY'E

0sic
19611

JRASTA
€691

1981
leee

1861
cvol

0Loc

000'689
000'e6Y'L

000'85E'Y
817.'6£6'C

86lLC
§iGie

G0le
9ell

ceel
980¢

cees
60¢C)

D
[
[=
N

00029
000'29%')

000'9LS'y
000'098'2

€91
£161¢2

9cle
Segl

87801
690¢

LySel
8YE

000'2LL 000€.9 000289 0006€.
000'12y'L 000°'99¢"} eju g/u
000'886't 000'6EL'S  000'99Z'% 000°2g2'y
000'000'¢ 000°0LL'E  000'088°C 000°0¥0'e
(R4 - eplL 6261 [A]%4
0891z 95ive 8L¥ET z5992
zove svee 1661 081
601 7101 508 K73
1016 zrle 19€8 1296
1611 299l yrol 9084
zLiol Givll 8v/l e/u
#E0L 8v8 oyl g9
7002 9002 S00¢ ¥002
SHVIA TYOSId NIL 18V

WVHOOUd/NOILONNS AQ SHOLVOIANI ONLLYHIHO
SVSNWX ‘ALIO NOILONNF 40 ALID

e/
g/u

000'262'S
000‘08L'e

008¢
8185¢

80LL
569

§GeeLl
Beu

e/u
o

€00¢

S|gE(IEAR JOU S| UOHBULIOW] - B/U

(suojjeb) juewyean abemas Ajiep obelony Jueid AMS
(suojjeb) uswiyeal} abemas Ajlep abelany jue|d jses
TOJEMSISEM

(0001 X suo|eb) uopdwnsuoo Ajiep Jesd
(000°1 X suojeB) uondwnsuoa Ajtep sbelary
SETVY

(syusAz [eioadg sad spunoy) 8sinoo Jo9
(3109 Jo spunoy) asinod jj0)
UOHE3INSY % SIEd

s|jeQ soin1eS |Bolps|p Aousbiawg
s|eQ auid
EE]

SUONBIOIA Oled ]
s)sally [ea1sAud
90ll1od

pajonpuog suopoadsuf Bulpiing
panss| sywiad Buip|ing
JUSUIUIGACE) [BIeUs5)

87




(UNAUDITED)

‘pasn sabuoj ou s| Huip|ing qnyH un4 JBWWNS,

sjuawipeda() sesuey; ‘A0 uogoung jo A0 :80InN0g

44} 44" 44" (24 gl el el el zl 4" (sepw) siemes wiolg
Jajem uuolS

0000006  000'000'G 000'000'S 000'000'G 000'000'S  000°000°S 000°000'S 000'000°G  000'000'G 000'000'S (suojieB) Ayoeden Ajiep Juswiesly

101 201 101 10} 01 G201 G201 A L'yl VL (sepiw) siemas Alejueg
TOJEMBISEAN

0000062 000'00S'Z2 000°00S'Z 000'00§'Z 000'00S'Z 000'00S‘'Z 000°00S'Z 000°00S'Z  000'00S'Z 000'00S'C (suojeB) Ayoedeo abelojg

gezl e'eel £€2L eeel £zl €€zl el LeLL ¥8 ¥8 (sepw) suiew Jejepp
J2JeAn

L i b L L L L 3 l b xa|dwoy uoeasoay Ay ulds

3 2 M 4 4 A4 Z 2 Z Z slajue) Ajunuwiwio)

9 9 A A L L ) L L L SHNOY sluuUd

L . 9/S 9/g 9/6 9/G 9/6 9/§ 9/G 9/6 splald ffeqyos/egeseg

L 1 ! I L L 1 L l L $9SIN0D 109

A 1 1 ! L L 1 L 1 1 s|00d Buiwwimg

6l 6l 8l 8l 8l I 1} 9l gl 9l syed oland
uoljealIday ¥ siied

8l 8l 6l Gl Gl S1 el gl el gl sjeuBis oyjel ).

G191 G19°) G191 GLO'L 8e'L gev'L eyl 9z¢e'} 9z8'L T siybiesng

6¥1 6Vl 6vL 67l 74" vzl ¥'18 ¥i8 ¥18 v'.8 (sepw) syeang
SHIOAA Dlldng
4 z r4 4 z 4 Z [4 z Z suoners sid

L A 2 L L L L L L L shun joled

L L ! I 1 l 3 L l L suoyels
80l[0d
z102 1102 0102 6002 8002 1002 9002 G002 002 €002 ‘webold/uonouny

SAUVIA TVOSId NIL LSV
AWVHO0Hd/NOILONNA A8 SOILSILVLS 13SSY V.LIdVO
SYSNYX ‘ALID NOILLONNT 40 ALID

88




CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA

Grantor/Program Title Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Transportation ’
Passed Through Kansas Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction 20205 $ 250,000
Alcohol Impaired Driving Countermeasures Incentive Grant 20.601 13,505
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 263,505
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Self Help Homeownership Opportunity Program 14.247 169,798
Passed Through Kansas Housing Resource Corporation
Emergency Solutions Grants Program 14.231 43,056
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 212,854
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response 97.083 58,758
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 58,758
Environmental Protection Agency
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds 66.458 70,722
Total Environmental Protection Agency 70,722
U.S. Department of Justice
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grant 16.710 26,153
Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 3,729
Total U.S. Department of Justice , 29,882
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards , $ 635,721

See independent auditor's report on the financial statements and notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards.
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1.

CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
General
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the expenditures of all federal
financial assistance programs of the City of Junction City, Kansas. All expenditures of federal financial
assistance received directly from federal agencies as well as federal financial assistance passed through other

governmental agencies are included on the scheduie.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Section | - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be
material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be
material weaknesses?

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with section 510(a) of Circular A-133?

ldentification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s)

20.205

14.247

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B
programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

91

Unmodified

Yes X No

X Yes None reported

Yes X No

Yes X No

Yes X None reported

Unmodified

Yes X No

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Highway Planning and Construction

Self Help Homeownership Opportunity
Program

$300,000

Yes X No




CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs - Continued
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Section li - Financial Statement Findings

Current Year Findings

Program Finding Conditions
N/A 2012-1 The City's internal controls in place during the

year were not designed and implemented in a
manner that provided for the safeguarding of
assets, execution of transactions in
accordance with management's authorization,
and preparation of financial statements in
accordance with GAAP. The City also had
inadequate segregation of duties in several
different cycles.

Prior Year Findings

Program Finding Conditions
N/A 2011-1 The City's internal controls in place during the

year were not designed and implemented in a
manner that provided for the safeguarding of
assets, execution of transactions in
accordance with management's authorization,
and preparation of financial statements in
accordance with GAAP. The City did not have
a finance director during the year, and the
accounting staff of the City did not have an
adequate knowledge of GAAP or internal
control. The City also had inadequate
segregation of duties in several difference
cycles, and bank reconciliations and journal
entries were not reviewed by an employee
other than the preparer.

92

Criteria
Management of the City is
responsible for establishing and
maintaining a system of internal

controls. The objectives of an internal

control system are to provide

management with reasonable, but not

absolute, assurance that assets are
safeguarded against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition, and
that transactions are executed in
accordance with management's
authorization and recorded properly
to permit the preparation of financial
statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP).

Criteria
Management of the City is
responsible for establishing and
maintaining a system of internal
controls. The objectives of an internal
control system are to provide
management with reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that assets are
safeguarded against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition, and
that transactions are executed in
accordance with management's
authorization and recorded properly
to permit the preparation of financial
statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP).



Questioned Costs

N/A

Questioned Costs
N/A

Recommendation Management Response
We recommend that the City continue ~ The City has hired a Finance

to establish an internal control Director to provide financial
structure such that managementis  oversight of all funds and ensure
provided with reasonable assurance compliance with accounting
that assets are safeguarded against policies as per adopted

loss from unauthorized use or accounting principles. In addition,
disposition, and that transactions are  a new set of accounting policies

executed in accordance with has been drafted and
management's authorization and implementation is in process to

recorded properly to permit the provide additional oversight and

preparation of financial statements in compliance.

accordance with GAAP.

Recommendation Status
We understand that the City has hired Repeat as Finding 2012-1
a finance director subsequent to year
end. We recommend that the City
continue to establish an internal control
structure such that management is
provided with reasonable assurance
that assets are safeguarded against
loss from unauthorized use or
disposition, and that transactions are
executed in accordance with
management's authorization and
recorded properly to permit the
preparation of financial statements in
accordance with GAAP.
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CITY OF JUNCTION CITY, KANSAS
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs - Continued
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
Current Year Findings

None Noted

Prior Year Findings

None Noted
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T AUDITOR’S COMMENTS TO MANAGEMENT

Mayor and City Commission
City of Junction City, Kansas

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Junction City, Kansas, as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2012, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

| However, during our audit, we became aware of several matters that are opportunities for strengthening internal
controls and operating efficiency (A separate report dated August 8, 2013, contains our report on significant
deficiencies in the City’s internal control). This letter does not affect our report dated August 8, 2013, on the financial
statements of the City of Junction City, Kansas.

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed many
of these comments and suggestions with various City personnel, and we will be pleased to discuss these comments
in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in
implementing the recommendations. Our comments are summarized as follows:

1.  We noted three instances where employee timesheets did not have the supervisor approval. We also noted two
instances where the timesheet could not be located and two instances where the overtime rate was
miscalculated. We recommend the City adhere to the City policies that require supervisor approval and proper
retention of City documents.

2. We noted eleven citation numbers for which the original tickets issued by the police department could not be
located. We also noted two case files that did not contain system generated receipts. Again, we recommend the
City adhere to the City policies that require the proper retention of City documents.

‘ : This report is intended for the use of the mayor, city commissioners and other members of management of Junction
‘ City, Kansas and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

August 8, 2013
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Mayor and City Commission
City of Junction City, Kansas

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Junction City, Kansas, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012, in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the City’s internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses
and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as
discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the
following deficiencies in the City’s internal control to be significant deficiencies:

Audit Adjustments

Many significant adjusting entries were required to correctly state account balances at year end. These adjusting
entries were identified through the audit process. This was due to reconciliations of account balances not being
performed by City staff. We recommend that reconciliations of all balance sheet account balances be performed in a
timely manner and all necessary adjustments be posted to the general ledger.

Segregation of Duties

Another employee has the ability to create new vendors in the payables system, enters invoices to be paid, and
prints signed checks. We recommend that these incompatible duties be segregated to further safeguard the assets
of the City.
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The approval process for the actual invoices currently includes the City Commission approving the pay ordinance.
We recommend that this pay ordinance be sorted in check number order and that part of the approval process
includes insuring that all checks are accounted for from one pay ordinance to another.

Municipal Court

We recommend that the City staff periodically perform reconciliation between the municipal court ticket system and a
log of tickets issued which should be maintained by the police department. We also recommend that the City monitor
the daily close out sheets to ensure that all receipt numbers are properly accounted for on the close out sheets.
Lastly, we recommend that an individual independent of the municipal court receipting process periodically review a
system generated list of outstanding cases for reasonableness.

This report is intended for the use of the mayor, city commission and management of Junction City, Kansas and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

lom. PO
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August 8, 2013
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AUDITOR'S COMMUNICATION TO THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

Mayor and City Commission
City of Junction City, Kansas

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Junction City, Kansas for the year ended December 31,
2012, and have issued our report thereon dated August 8, 2013. Professional standards require that we provide you
with the following information related to our audit.

QOur Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated, October 29, 2012, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of material misstatement and to express an opinion about whether the financial statements are
fairly presented, in all material respects, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our
audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional judgment,
relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not required to design
procedures specifically to identify such matters.

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the City of Junction City, Kansas. Such considerations
were solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such
internal control.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to management in our
meeting about planning matters on March 27, 2013.

Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility for selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting policies and
their application. The significant accounting policies used by the City of Junction City, Kansas are described in Note
1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was
not changed for the year ended December 31, 2012. We noted no transactions entered into by the City of Junction
City, Kansas during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no
significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial statements in a different period than when the
transaction occurred.
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Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most
sensitive estimate affecting the financial statements was:

Management's estimate of accumulated depreciation is based on the straighi-line method of depreciation. We
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the accumulated depreciation in determining that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Corrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us fo accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other
than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. We were informed that
management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of
audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the
financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are inciuded in the management representation
letter dated August 8, 2013.

Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting
principle to the governmental unit's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may
be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
other accountants.

Issues Discussed Prior o Retention of Independent Auditors

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of the accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City of Junction City, Kansas' auditors. However,
this discussion occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing our audit.

This information is intended solely for the use of the mayor, city commission and management of the City of Junction
City, Kansas, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
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August 8, 2013



